
Town of North Yarmouth 
Select Board Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, February 7, 2023 
Regular Business Meeting 

6:00 PM 
Wescustogo Hall & North Yarmouth Community Center 

 
REMINDERS TO THE ATTENDING PUBLIC:  Please mute all digital devices; Select Board meetings are open to the public, 
but the public may not speak unless recognized by the Chairperson first.  Workshops:  The public is welcome to attend 
workshops and listen to the discussion that takes place.  The purpose of holding a workshop is to provide the Select Board 
with the opportunity to focus on specific town matters to later present at a regular business meeting. Therefore, public 
participation is limited to only regular business meetings of the Select Board.         

Version 2.0 – 2/3/2023 

 

 
Select Board Members 

 
Brian Sites, Chairperson Paul Hodgetts, Board Member Amy Haile, Board Member 

 
Andrea Berry, Board Member 

 
Kate Perrin, Board Member 

 
 
I. Call to Order 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
B. History Minute 

 
 
II. Executive Session- 1 M.R. S. § 405 (6)(A) to discuss personnel matters. 

 

III. Appointments 
EDSC Resignation-Kevin Robinson 

 
IV. Special Presentations 

A.  PACTS Project Engineering Design and Cost Update 
B.  LD 2003 Update-Matt Panfil, Planning Director, GPCOG 
C.  EV Charging Stations-Fortunat Mueller, President ReVision Energy 
D. Cumberland/North Yarmouth Little League-Improvements to Softball Field 

 
V. Announcements 
 
VI. Consent Agenda 

A. Municipal Payroll Warrants 
B. Municipal Accounts Payable Warrants 
C. Select Board Minutes January 17, 2023 

 
          

VII. Public Comment - Non-Agenda Items 
 

VIII. Management Reports & Communications  
 

A. Town Manager’s Report 
 
IX. Old Business  

A.  Board and Committee Appointment Process 
 

X. New Business 
A. Waiver of Foreclosure  
B. Audio Visual Broadcasting Equipment-Change Order #1 
C. Solicit Bids for PACTS Project W.I.N. #025813.00 
D. Sweetser Road Culvert Bid Award 
E. Cumberland/North Yarmouth Little League-Improvements to Softball Field 
F. Write-Off Personal Property Tax 

 

XI. Any Other Business 
 
 

XII. Adjournment 
 

  



Town of North Yarmouth 
Select Board Business 

 
Summary of Recommended Motions & Other Action Items 

 
February 7, 2023 

Motion to enter into executive session- Time________________ 

 

Motion___________, Second __________   Vote___________ 
 

Motion to enter regular session-Time_____________ 

 

Motion___________, Second __________   Vote___________ 
 

VI.  Consent Agenda 
 
Motion___________, Second __________   Vote___________ 
 

A. Municipal Accounts Payable Warrants 
# $   
# $ 
# $   
 

B. Municipal Payroll Warrants 
# $  
# $  

C. Select Board Minutes-January 17, 2023 
 

Suggested Motion 
 
To approve the consent agenda as presented. 
 
IX. Old Business 
 

A.  Board and Committee Appointment Process 
 
Motion___________, Second __________   Vote___________  
 
 

Suggested Motion 
 

To approve the Board and Committee Appointment Process as Presented. 
 
 
 



Town of North Yarmouth 
Select Board Business 

 
Summary of Recommended Motions & Other Action Items 

 
X.  New Business 
 
 

A. Waiver of Foreclosure: 

The Municipal Treasurer, when authorized by the Select Board, may waive the foreclosure 
of a tax lien mortgage by recording a waiver of foreclosure in the registry of deeds in which 
the tax lien certificate is recorded before the right of redemption shall expire. (36 M.R.S., 
Chapter 105 § 944, “Foreclosure for equitable relief, procedure).  

Suggested Motion 

Move that the Select Board authorize the Treasurer to file a waiver of 
foreclosure for account #143, Hilda Gladstone, 111 Mountfort Rd., Map Lot 
003-091, for the 2020 tax lien mortgage in the Cumberland County Registry 
of Deeds. Second, discussion and vote follow.  

 
Motion___________,  Second __________   Vote___________  
 

Suggested Motion 
 

B.  Audio Visual Broadcasting Equipment-Change Order #1 
 
This change order is to include AV systems in additional building spaces that were 
excluded from the bid RFP as outlined below: 
 
Merrill Room- Projection Screen 
Anderson Room – Camera and Microphones 
Gymnasium-Portable Production Equipment 
 
The total lump sum for this proposal is $37,059.11 bringing the total for this project to 
$181,114.75.  This project is funded through the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) and 
has an estimated budget of $200,000. 
 
The Town received $408,573.60 and the voters approved at the April 30, 2022 Annual 
Town Meeting, to designate $372,000 of ARPA funds for this project and the Sweetser 
Road Culvert project. 

 
Suggested Motion 

 
To approve change order #1 for the Audio/Visual Broadcasting Equipment 
 
Motion___________, Second __________   Vote___________  
 



Town of North Yarmouth 
Select Board Business 

 
Summary of Recommended Motions & Other Action Items 

 
C. Solicit Bids for PACTS Project W.I.N. #025813.00 

 
The Town of North Yarmouth has entered into a Three-Party Municipal Partnership 
Agreement with MDOT and Portland Area Comprehensive Transportation System 
(PACTS) for proposed improvements to Walnut Hill & Cumberland Road. 
 
The scope of the project consists of upgrading the intersection of Cumberland Road and 
Pea Lane to meet ADA standards, as well as drainage improvements and reconfiguration 
of the intersection of Cumberland Road and Walnut Hill Road. 
 
The preliminary cost estimates for this project should be about $600,000.  Currently, 
we are requesting permission to solicit bids for this project. 
 

Suggested Motion 
 
Authorize the Town Manager and Town Engineer to solicit bids for the 
PACTS Project W.I.N. #025813.00. 
 
 
Motion___________, Second __________   Vote___________  
 
 

D. Sweetser Road Culvert Bid Award 
 

On January 24th, 2023, bids were opened for the Sweetser Road Culvert Replacement 
project.  Five bids were received as follows: 
 

Contractor Location Crossing Raise Guard Total 

    Complete Road Rail Bid 

      
Skid Steer Svs., LLC Naples, ME $394,578.00 $12,578.00 $13,578.00 $420,734.00 

St. Laurent & Son, Inc. Lewiston, ME $698,897.00 $19,250.00 $4,850.00 $722,997.00 

A.H. Grover North Yarmouth, ME $375,298.00 $7,000.00 $5,575.00 $387,873.00 

Alternate #1  $303,000.00 $7,000.00 $5,575.00 $315,575.00 

Alternate #2  $267,000.00 $7,000.00 $5,575.00 $279,575.00 

J. Pratt Construction, Inc. Hebron, ME $409,898.00 $2,500.00 $4,400.00 $416,798.00 

Storey Brothers, Inc. Cumberland, ME $471,945.00 $9,730.00 $5,340.00 $487,015.00 

 
 
The low bidder is A.H. Grover Inc.  The bid documents were examined by Dirigo 
Engineering, and they found everything to be in order.  A.H. Grover, Inc. provided an 
alternative to the primary design of a precast box bridge and lower price using a 4-sided 



Town of North Yarmouth 
Select Board Business 

 
Summary of Recommended Motions & Other Action Items 

 
box culvert.  This type of construction is allowed on their plans, and they support using 
this product. 
 
The funding for this project comes from three sources as follows: 

1. DEP Stream Crossing Grant  $125,000 
2. ARPA Funds     $172,000 

$297,000 
 
The Audio-Visual has an estimated balance of 18,885.25 that can be re-allocated to this 
project to cover the $18,575 difference. 
 

Suggested Motion 
 
Award the bid for the Sweetser Road Culvert project to A. H. Grover, bid 
Alternate #1 for a total bid package of $315,575 and allocated $18,575 from 
the Audio-Visual project to fully fund this project and authorize the Town 
Manager to execute the contract documents. 
 
Motion___________, Second __________   Vote___________ 
 
 

E.   Cumberland/North Yarmouth Little League-Improvements to Softball Field 
 
The Cumberland/North Yarmouth Little League seeks approval from the Select Board , 
to apply for a building permit for the following improvements to the Softball field 
located at WH &NYCC: 

• Relocated existing storage shed. 
• Install underground utilities (electricity & water). 
• Remove and relocated existing parking barriers and install new parking barrier. 
• Construct new Snack Shack/Announcers Booth. 
• Feed underground power to new scoreboard. 

 
All expenses will be the sole responsibility of the Cumberland North Yarmouth Little 
League.  Donors and volunteers will assist in the project go create a better recreation 
facility for the community. 
 

Suggested Motion 
 
Approve the project and authorize CNYLL to apply for a building permit for 
improvements to the Softball Field. 
 
Motion___________, Second __________   Vote___________ 



Town of North Yarmouth 
Select Board Business 

 
Summary of Recommended Motions & Other Action Items 

 
 
 

F.  Write-Off Personal Property Tax 
 
A 2021 business and equipment tax was assessed to Tender Years Learning Center that 
is currently delinquent.  The Tax Collector has not been successful in collecting the tax.  
Since this is a 2021 tax, it is too late to file a UCC Lien on the property. 
 
The 2021 were assessed as of April 1, 2020, and a lien would have need to be filed by 
4/1/2022.  Two months is not enough time to begin the collection process on delinquent 
taxes therefore, I am recommending that the Select Board write-off the 2021 Personal 
Property Tax assessed to Tender Years Learning Center in the amount of $288.44 that 
has a principal balance of $248.25 and accrued interest of $40.19 through February 7, 
2023, due to the inability to collect the tax. 
 

Suggested Motion 
 

Approve the write-off of personal property taxes assessed to Tender Years 
Learning Center in the amount of $288.44. 
 
 
Motion___________, Second __________   Vote___________ 
 



LD 2003 
Guidance 

MAINE DEPARTMENT OF  
ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT



LD 2003 Guidance 

“An Act To Implement the Recommendations of the 
Commission To Increase Housing Opportunities in 
Maine by Studying Zoning and Land Use Restrictions,” 
generally referred to by its legislative tracking name of LD 
2003, was signed into law by Governor Mills on April 
27, 2022. This law is designed to remove unnecessary 

regulatory barriers to housing production in Maine, 
while preserving local ability to create land use plans 
and protect sensitive environmental resources. LD 
2003 is based on the recommendations of the legislative 
commission named in the title, though not all those 
recommendations are included in the enacted legislation.

2

This guidance is the result of a collaborative effort by the Department of Economic and 

Community Development, the Governor’s Office of Policy Innovation and the Future, the 

Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry; legislative staff, and several municipal 

lawyers and community planners.  It is intended to provide information for local authorities to use 

in determining how LD 2003 affects their local zoning and land use codes, as well as what steps 

they can take if they wish to tailor their ordinances to avoid conflicts with state laws. While it is 

not legally binding or intended to serve as a substitute for the language of LD 2003 or the rules 

that will be adopted under the law, this guidance represents the interpretation of LD 2003 and 

its requirements by the state agencies that are responsible for its implementation.

https://legislature.maine.gov/doc/7705
https://legislature.maine.gov/doc/7705


3

LD 2003 has the following sections that are relevant to municipal government. The amended sections of state law 
are shown in the chart below. Among other things:

1.	 Section 4 allows for additional density for “affordable housing developments” in certain areas.

2.	 Section 5 generally requires that municipalities allow between two and four housing units per lot 
where housing is permitted.

3.	 Section 6 requires that municipalities allow accessory dwelling units to be located on the same lot as 
a single-family home, under certain conditions.

4.	 Sections 3 and 7 require that the state establish statewide and regional housing production goals 
and set forth ways in which local governments can coordinate with that goal.

WHILE LD 2003 WENT INTO EFFECT ON AUGUST 8, 2022, SOME ELEMENTS OF THE LAW ARE 

NOT REQUIRED TO BE APPLIED UNTIL JULY 1, 2023

LD 2003 in Brief

Effective Aug. 8, 2022

Statewide Housing
Production Goals
(5 MRSA §13056, sub-§9)

Effective July 1, 2023

Affordable Housing Density
in Growth Areas Bonus

(4 30-A MRSA §4364)

Effective July 1, 2023

Two to Four Units
(5 30-A MRSA §4364-A)

Effective Aug. 8, 2022

Municipal Role in Fair Housing/
Short Term Rentals

(7 30-A MRSA §4364-C)

Effective July 1, 2023

Accessory Dwelling Units
(6 30 A MRSA §4364-B)



IN GENERAL, AS LONG AS THESE ACTIONS ARE 
CONSISTENT WITH LD 2003, MUNICIPALITIES MAY:

CONTINUE to develop Growth Management programs, including 
comprehensive plans and zoning consistent with those plans

ENFORCE local shoreland zoning ordinances consistent with state 
shoreland zoning law 

REGULATE how many square feet of land are needed for each dwelling 
unit (other than accessory dwelling units)

CONDUCT site plan review, if authorized by local ordinances, of any 
residential development

REGULATE the maximum size of accessory dwelling units

REGULATE short-term rentals in their community

CREATE rate of growth ordinances so long as they do not limit the number 
of accessory dwelling units outlined in Section 6

CREATE local ordinances that are more permissive for residential housing 
development than the requirements of LD 2003

REGULATE housing development based on documented water and 
wastewater capacity constraints

IN GENERAL, UNDER THIS LAW, LOCAL 
GOVERNMENTS MAY NOT:

ENACT local ordinances that allow housing but limit it to one unit per lot 

PROHIBIT one accessory dwelling unit per lot or count those units towards 
a rate of growth ordinance

LIMIT the affordable housing density bonuses allowed in LD 2003 in 
growth areas as defined in state law

4



5

This section creates an automatic density bonus for 
certain affordable housing developments. To qualify for 
this bonus, the development must:

1.	 Be approved after June 30, 2023

2.	 Include a certain number of rent or sales price 
restricted affordable housing units

3.	 Be in a growth area under section 4349-A,  
subsection 1, paragraph A or B, or served by  
water and sewer

4.	 Be in an area in which multifamily dwellings  
are allowed

5.	 Meet shoreland zoning requirements, meet mini-
mum lot sizes if using subsurface waste disposal, 
and verify that water and sewer capacity is adequate 
for the development

BONUSES FOR AN AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
DEVELOPMENT

To take advantage of this density bonus, a development 
must qualify as “affordable” (as defined below). If eligi-
ble, the affordable housing development qualifies for the 
following exceptions to the zoning requirements in the 
community:

1.	 The number of units allowed will be 2.5 times the 
number allowed for a development not designated 
affordable

2.	 The off-street parking requirements may not exceed 
two spaces for every three units

So, for example, if a developer can build up to six units on 
a site under local rules, and designates the development 
as affordable, the developer would be eligible to build 15 
units (6 x 2.5). The local off-street parking requirement 
for this development could not exceed ten spaces (15 x 2/3). 
In cases of fractional results, the number of units would 
generally be rounded down, but the number of spaces 
would generally be rounded up. 

Affordable Housing Density Bonus
30-A MRSA §4364 



6

For rentals, a household with an income at no more than 80% of 

the area median income for the community, as defined by the U.S. 

Department of Housing & Urban Development, must be able to 

afford more than half of the units in the development. That means 

that rent and certain other housing expenses will not require more 

than 30% of the household’s income.

For homeownership projects, a household with an income at no 

more than 120% of the area median income for the community, as 

defined by the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development, 

must be able to afford more than half of the units in the 

development. That means that mortgage payments (including 

mortgage insurance) and certain other housing expenses will not 

require more than 30% of the household’s income.

The units that will be affordable at these levels must be 

restricted through a restrictive covenant that is enforceable 

by a party acceptable to the municipality (which could be the 

municipality) for at least 30 years, and that states that the units 

must be restricted in rent or sales prices accordingly. Often these 

developments will be getting funding through MaineHousing, 

which typically requires a comparable covenant.

WHAT REQUIREMENTS DO AFFORDABLE  
HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS HAVE TO MEET  

TO RECEIVE THE DENSITY BONUS?

Information on Area Median Incomes is updated annually by the U.S. Department of 

Housing & Urban Development. For reference, MaineHousing maintains updated 80% 

of area median income and 120% of area median income data on their website.

6

View	AMI	data	on	MaineHousing.org

https://www.mainehousing.org/charts/rent-income-charts
https://www.mainehousing.org/charts/rent-income-charts


7

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ON AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
DENSITY BONUS

What	is	meant	by	“multifamily	dwellings?”	

“Multifamily dwellings” will be defined in 
rulemaking, but in planning practice generally 
applies to three units or more.

What	is	a	“base	density	that	is	otherwise	
allowed?”	

Under a local zoning code, the “base density 
that is otherwise allowed” is the number of 
dwelling units that might be allowed in a list 
of uses, and/or the maximum number of units 
allowed based on dimensional requirements, 
such as lot area per dwelling unit.

If	lot	area	per	dwelling	unit	can	be	used	as	
a	measure	of	number	of	units	permitted,	
do	the	limits	on	lot	area	per	dwelling	unit	
requirements	in	Section	5	apply?	

This will be addressed in rulemaking.

How	does	this	density	bonus	interact	with	
any	local	density	bonus	that	might	exist?	

This will be addressed in rulemaking.

What	if	a	household	exceeds	the	maximum	
income	after	living	in	the	unit?	

LD 2003 specifies that the income eligibility 
is based on household income “at the time of 
initial occupancy,” meaning that a household 
could be allowed to remain in an “affordable” 
unit if their income goes up after they occupy 
the unit. MaineHousing has experience with this 
issue, as do communities that manage their own 
affordable housing programs, so there may be 
best practices that can be adopted locally. The 
restrictive covenants should outline how this 
would work.

What	happens	when	a	restricted	affordable	
home	ownership	unit	is	sold?

The restrictive covenants should outline how this 
would work. MaineHousing has experience with 
this issue, as do communities that manage their 
own affordable housing programs, so there may 
be best practices that can be adopted locally. 



8

This section requires municipalities to allow multiple 
dwelling units on parcels where housing is allowed, 
provided evidence of sufficient water and wastewater 
capacity exists, beginning on July 1, 2023. Municipali-
ties may not apply different dimensional requirements to 
lots with more than one housing unit on them than they 
would to a lot with one housing unit, with the exception 
that they may require a minimum lot area per dwelling 
unit. However, if the municipality chooses to require a 
minimum lot area per dwelling unit, the lot area required 
may not be less for the first unit than for subsequent units.

The number of units allowed under this section depends 
on a few factors:

•	 A lot without a dwelling unit already on it can  
have two units if it is not within a designated 
growth area under section 4349-A, subsection 1, 
paragraph A or B, served by water system and sewer 
in a municipality without a comprehensive plan.

•	 A lot with an existing dwelling unit may have 
up to two additional dwelling units, either one 
additional attached dwelling unit, one additional 
detached dwelling unit, or one of each.

•	 A lot without a dwelling unit already on it can have 
four units if it is either:

    Within a designated growth area under section 
4349-A, subsection 1, paragraph A or B, or

   Served by water system and sewer in a  
  municipality without a comprehensive plan.

Municipalities may allow more than the minimum 
number required to be allowed on all lots that allow hous-
ing, if they wish. In addition, private parties are permit-
ted to restrict the number of housing units on a lot in 
a private easement, covenant, deed restriction or other 
agreement provided the agreement does not violate State 
or Federal rights such as equal protection.

Finally, a municipality may determine in local ordinance 
that if a property owner tears down an existing dwelling 
unit, the lot may be treated under this section as if the 
dwelling unit were still in existence.

Residential Areas, Generally;  
Up to 4 Dwelling Units

30-A MRSA §4364-A 



9

Lot Area per Dwelling Unit

Additional units may not require 
more land area per unit than the first unit

One Unit Requires 
10,000 sq ft

Two Units Require   
30,000 sq ft

Three Units Require 
50,000 sq ft

NOT PERMITTED

1 2

One Unit 
Requires
10,000 sq ft

Two Units
May Require Up
To 20,000 sq ft

Three Units
May Require Up
To 30,000 sq ft

PERMITTED

1 2 3

3



10

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ON  
RESIDENTIAL AREAS, GENERALLY UP TO 4 DWELLING UNITS

Subsection	2	(“Zoning	Requirements”)	
says	that	municipal	zoning	ordinances	
“must”	comply	with	certain	conditions,	but	
subsection	B.	says	that	they	“may”	regulate	
how	this	section	applies	to	a	lot	where	a	
dwelling	unit	is	torn	down.	Is	this	a	“must”	
or	a	“may”?

Municipalities have the option of taking the 
actions in subsection B but do not have to do 
so, in which case a lot where a dwelling unit was 
torn down would be viewed as a vacant lot.

Subsection	4	says	that	verification	must	
be	provided	to	“the	municipality”	of	water	
and	wastewater	services.	Who	should	that	
verification	be	provided	to?

These capacity issues should be reviewed by 
the municipal staff or board that would normally 
review these issues as part of any housing 
development.

What	if	a	municipality	does	not	use	
Certificates	of	Occupancy?

Subsection 4 says that the municipality will 
“certify [a] structure for occupancy.” This 
requirement should be met for new housing 
developments under this section the same way 
they would be for any other housing. 

What	is	meant	by	“potable”	water?	

This will be addressed in rulemaking. 

What	if	housing	is	allowed	in	an	area	but	
only	as	a	conditional	use?

Housing would be considered allowed in that 
area for the purposes of subsection 1. This will 
be further addressed in rulemaking. 

What	does	“attached	to	an	existing	
structure”	mean? 

Local ordinance can define “attached” but 
it would generally mean having physically 
connected finished spaces, not just connected 
via a common porch, breezeway or foundation.

Does	the	language	in	subsection	1	mean	
that	if	a	lot	is	served	by	water	and	sewer	
in	a	municipality	without	a	comprehensive	
plan	that	it	does	not	need	to	be	vacant	to	
allow	up	to	4	units?

No, that language still requires the lot not 
“contain an existing dwelling unit.”



11

Residential Areas 

Empty Lot Where Housing Is Already Allowed

One 
Dwelling 

Unit

1

Empty Lot Two 
Dwelling 

Units

2

Three 
Dwelling 

Units

3

Four 
Dwelling 

Units

4

NOTE: The three and four units can
be within one structure or multiple 
structures.

THREE AND FOUR UNITS ALLOWED IF:
– Located in “growth area” consistent  
   with section 4349-A, subsection 1,   
   paragraph A or B.

– Located in area with existing water/
 sewer capabilities in towns without  
 comprehensive plans.

Existing Home

Additional unit within 
the existing structure 
(e.g., basement or 
attic)

Adding 1 Unit 
to Lot with 

Existing Home

OR

OR

OR

+1

Additional unit 
attached to the 
existing structure

+1 +1
Additional unit 
detached from the 
existing structure

Additional units attached to 
the existing structure and 
detached from existing 
structure

+1 +1+1
Additional units within 
the existing structure 
and detached from the 
existing structure

+1

Adding 2 Units 
to Lot with 

Existing Home



12

What Can Be Built On This Lot?

In a growth area 
consistent with 
section 4349-A, 
subsection 1, 
paragraph A or 
B, with public 
water and 
sewer in 
municipality 
without a 
comprehensive 
plan

Outside 
growth area

Up to 2 
dwelling units, 
if attached

Up to 4 
dwelling units, 
detached or 
attached

Up to 2 additional 
dwelling units

1 accessory 
dwelling unit

Choose: 
a. One unit within
 or attached

b. One unit   
detached

c. One of each

Exempt from:
a. Rate of growth   
    ordinances

b. Additional density
 area/standards

c. Additional parking
 requirements

No new 
structure may be 
built unless 
allowed under 
local ordinance

ON LAND WITH  ZERO 
EXISTING UNITS

ON LAND WITH  ONE 
EXISTING UNIT

ON LAND WITH  TWO 
EXISTING UNITS

• Home Owners Association        

   regulations

• Deed restrictions

• Lot size or set back requirements
 (not greater than single family/existing accessory        
   structure)

• Septic requirements

• Shoreland Zoning

• Other locally determined ADU standards

 (e.g. maximum size, rules regarding short term  
   rental, etc.)

PRIVATE, STATE OR LOCAL 
STANDARDS SUCH AS THESE 
MAY APPLY: 

• Home Owners Association        

   regulations

• Deed restrictions

• Lot size, set back, density
 (not greater than single family)

• Septic requirements

• Minimum Lot Size

• Additional Parking requirement

• Growth ordinance permits

• Shoreland Zoning

• Subdivision Law

PRIVATE, STATE OR LOCAL 
STANDARDS SUCH AS THESE 
MAY APPLY: 



13

This section essentially allows any lot with a single-family 
dwelling in an area where housing is permitted to have 
one accessory dwelling unit (ADU) as well, effective July 
1, 2023. That ADU can be within the existing home, 
attached to it, or in a new structure. Municipalities may 
also allow existing accessory structures to be converted 
into an ADU.

An ADU allowed under this law is exempt from zoning 
density requirements. In reviewing an ADU, the setback 
and dimensional requirements for a single-family home 
continue to apply unless the municipality makes them 
more permissive for an ADU. For ADUs in an accessory 
structure, the setback and dimensional requirements for 
such a structure apply.

ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT PARKING

Additional parking requirements for the ADU beyond 
those required for the single-family dwelling are not 
permitted.

ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT SIZE

ADUs must be at least 190 square feet in size. Municipali-
ties may set a maximum size for ADUs in local ordinance.

OTHER MUNICIPAL POWERS

Municipalities may establish an application and permit-
ting process for ADUs provided it is consistent with in 
this section. Municipalities may also define ADUs, as  
long as the definition is consistent with state law in Title 
30-A, §4301. 1-C.  In addition, municipalities may estab-
lish requirements for ADUs that are less restrictive than 
those in this section, such as allowing more than one 
ADU on a lot or allowing an ADU for two-family or 
multifamily dwellings.

SIMILARITIES AND DIFFERENCES FROM OTHER SECTIONS

LIKE SECTIONS 4 AND 5, shoreland zoning still applies, as do 
requirements to verify adequate water and wastewater capacity.

LIKE SECTION 5, private parties are permitted to restrict the number of 
housing units on a lot, including ADUs, in a private easement, covenant, 
deed restriction or other agreement provided the agreement does not 
violate State or Federal rights such as equal protection.

UNLIKE SECTION 5, one ADU for each single-family dwelling does not 
count towards any rate of growth ordinance as described in §4360. 

UNLIKE SECTIONS 4 & 5, additional parking cannot be required for an 
ADU.

Accessory Dwelling Units
30-A MRSA §4364-B 



14

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ON ACCESSORY  
DWELLING UNITS

How	is	an	ADU	defined?

The law does not define ADUs. There is a 
definition in 30-A MRSA §4301 and many 
communities define them in local ordinances. 
Rulemaking will clarify which definition to use. 

Can	an	ADU	be	larger	than	a	primary	
structure?

Yes, unless the municipality limits the maximum 
size of an ADU.

Can	a	previously	illegal	ADU	be	legalized	
under	this	section?

This will be addressed in rulemaking. 

If	a	pre-existing	single-family	dwelling	is	on	
a	non-conforming	lot	(with	respect	to	size,	
frontage,	or	similar	characteristics)	can	an	
ADU	be	built	on	that	lot?

This will be addressed in rulemaking.

Subsection	7	says	that	verification	must	
be	provided	to	“the	municipality”	of	water	
and	wastewater	services.	Who	should	that	
verification	be	provided	to?

These capacity issues should be reviewed by 
the municipal staff or board that would normally 
review these issues as part of any housing 
development. 

What	if	a	community	does	not	use	
Certificates	of	Occupancy?

Subsection 4 says that the municipality will 
“certify [a] structure for occupancy.” This 
requirement should be met for new housing 
developments under this section the same way 
they would be for any other housing, whether 
through a formal Certificate of Occupancy or 
otherwise.

What	is	meant	by	“potable”	water?	

This will be addressed in rulemaking. 

What	if	housing	is	allowed	in	an	area	but	
only	as	a	conditional	use?

Housing would be considered allowed in that 
area for the purposes of subsection 1. This will 
be further addressed in rulemaking. 

What	does	“attached	to	an	existing	
structure”	mean?	

Local ordinance can define “attached” but 
it would generally mean having physically 
connected finished spaces, not just connected 
via a common porch, breezeway or foundation.

If	a	parcel	has	an	existing	two-unit	
structure,	does	subsection	1	allow	an	ADU	
to	be	built?	

No, though a municipality would have the ability 
to allow that.



15

Parking for ADUs

Example Parking Requirement 

Single Family Home
2 spaces minimum

This example applies to towns with minimum parking requirements. 
For towns without parking restrictions, no additional restrictions would be imposed. 

Single Family Home + ADU
3 spaces minimum

NOT PERMITTED

PERMITTED

Single Family Home
2 spaces minimum

Single Family Home + ADU 
2 spaces minimum

+1

+1



16

Section 3 directs the Department of Economic & 
Community Development, in coordination with Maine-
Housing, to develop a statewide housing production goal 
and regional production goals based on that statewide 
goal. In doing so, the section instructs the Department 
to set benchmarks for meeting those goals, as well as 
to consider information provided by municipalities on 
current and potential housing development and permits.

Section 7 outlines ways municipalities can play a role in 
achieving those state and regional goals. It states that 
municipalities must ensure that local ordinances and 
regulations are designed to affirmatively further the 
purposes of the Federal Fair Housing Act, as well as the 
Maine Human Rights Act, as part of meeting the hous-
ing goals. It also explicitly authorizes municipalities to 
establish and enforce regulations related to short-term 
rentals to help meet those goals.

Housing Goals & Fair Housing
MRSA §13056, sub-§9 AND 30-A MRSA §4364-C 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ON SECTIONS 3 & 7

What	obligations	do	the	affirmatively	
furthering	fair	housing	provisions	put	on	
municipalities	that	didn’t	already	exist	
before	LD	2003	passed?

Until recently, the link between land use regu-
lation and fair housing was often not recog-
nized. Section 7 clarifies that municipalities must 
ensure that zoning and land use ordinances and 
regulations are designed to affirmatively further 
the purposes of these state and federal laws.

What	happens	if	local,	regional	or	
statewide	housing	goals	are	not	met?

These sections do not set forth any specific 
penalties for not meeting these goals.

How	does	this	relate	to	local	Growth	
Management	programs	and	comprehensive	
plans?

Local comprehensive plans, while not regulatory 
documents, should not conflict with these 
sections. The regulations for comprehensive 
plans under Chapter 208 state that communities 
should “[s]eek to achieve a level of at least 10% 
of new residential development built or placed 
during the next decade be affordable.”

Do	municipalities	have	to	regulate	short	
term	rentals?	

No. 



Housing Goals & Fair Housing
MRSA §13056, sub-§9 AND 30-A MRSA §4364-C GENERAL QUESTIONS

What	happens	if	a	municipality	does	not	act	to	update	local	ordinances,	
or	tries	to	act	and	the	updates	are	not	approved	by	the	local	legislative	
body?		

LD 2003 is an express preemption on municipal home rule authority. 
Therefore, any ordinance or regulation that is not consistent with the law 
may be challenged as invalid. Municipalities are encouraged to contact 
legal counsel to discuss how the law will affect the enforcement of existing 
ordinances and regulations. 

If	a	town	does	not	have	growth	areas	as	defined	by	section	4349-A,	
subsection	1,	paragraph	A	or	B,	and	does	not	have	any	areas	served	by	
water	or	sewer,	does	it	need	to	comply	with	LD	2003?

These communities would not be subject to the affordable housing density 
provisions in Section 4, and would not have areas that are required to 
allow up to four units on a residential lot as per Section 5. Other sections of 
LD 2003 would apply. 

How	will	LD	2003’s	requirements	be	related	to	municipal	
comprehensive	plans?	

Comprehensive plans seeking a finding of consistency under the 
regulations in Chapter 208 should meet those requirements. Since a 
comprehensive plan is not a regulatory document, LD 2003 would 
not create any additional requirements. However, zoning ordinances 
adopted in a municipality would have to be consistent with both a local 
comprehensive plan and LD 2003.

Is	LD	2003	a	model	ordinance	for	use	in	local	zoning?

LD 2003 is not a model ordinance. Communities will be able to seek 
funding from the Housing Opportunity Program to develop new 
ordinances. In addition, the Department of Economic & Community 
Development will be hiring staff to provide technical assistance to 
communities.  

17



Can	developers	“double	count”	bonuses	from	various	sections?	

This issue is outlined in §4364-A Section 2.A. and §4364-B Section 3.B. It 
will be further addressed for applicability to §4364 in rulemaking.

Sections	4,	5,	and	6	require	written	verification	of	“adequate	water	
and	wastewater	services.”		What	about	a	municipal	concern	that	while	
a	specific	housing	development	may	not	immediately	threaten	water	
quality,	the	cumulative	impact	of	new	development	may	do	so	in	a	way	
that	it	did	not	prior	to	LD	2003? 

As was true prior to the passage of LD 2003, communities are free to 
take regulatory actions as appropriate for protection of natural resources 
or existing water systems. These can include changes to zoning districts 
to limit where housing is permitted; changes to lot size requirements; or 
the creation of an impact fee system consistent with state law to fund 
environmental or water quality protection. 

What	does	section	4349-A,	subsection	1,	paragraph	A	or	B	say?

It directs the State to make growth-related capital investments only in: 

 A.  A locally designated growth area, as identified in a comprehensive 
plan adopted pursuant to and consistent with the procedures, 
goals and guidelines of this subchapter or as identified in a growth 
management program certified under section 4347A;  

or

 B.  In the absence of a consistent comprehensive plan, an area served 
by a public sewer system that has the capacity for the growth-
related project, an area identified in the latest Federal Decennial 
Census as a census-designated place or a compact area of an 
urban compact municipality as defined by Title 23, section 754; or   
[PL 1999, c. 776, §10 (NEW).]

Growth areas are defined in section 4301, subsection 6-C as:

  An area that is designated in a municipality’s or multi-municipal 
region’s comprehensive plan as suitable for orderly residential, 
commercial or industrial development, or any combinations of 
those types of development, and into which most development 
projected over 10 years is directed.

18



19

RULEMAKING PROCESSES

Sections 4, 5 and 6 authorize rulemaking to be led by 
the Department of Economic & Community Develop-
ment, in consultation with the Department of Agricul-
ture, Conservation & Forestry. These rules are considered 
“technical” – meaning they “establish standards of prac-
tice or procedure for the conduct of business with or 
before an agency” and can be approved administratively.  
Rulemaking is expected to begin in the fall of 2022.

FUNDING FOR TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 

While not part of LD 2003, the supplemental budget 
for Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023 included Section U-1. 5 
MRSA §13056-J, providing funding for a new “Housing 
Opportunity Program.” That program will “encourage 
and support the development of additional housing units 
in Maine, including housing units that are affordable 
for low and moderate income people and housing units 
targeted to community workforce housing needs” by 
supporting “regional approaches, municipal model ordi-
nance development, and … policy that supports increased 
housing density where feasible to protect working and 
natural lands.”

The Housing Opportunity Program will consist of three 
general areas. “Service Provider grants” will be awarded 
to experienced service providers to support municipal 
ordinance development, technical assistance, and public 
process and community engagement support, and may 
encourage regional coordination. Community Housing 
Incentive Program grants will be funded to municipali-
ties directly in two categories:

•	 Community housing planning grants to be awarded 
through a competitive process to municipalities to 
support the creation of housing development plans, 
and ordinance and policy amendments to support 
those plans. The grants will be awarded for a period 
of up to three years, with progress reports each year.

•	 Community housing implementation grants to be 
awarded through a competitive process to support 
the implementation of community housing prior-
ities.

Finally, the Department of Economic and Community 
Development will be adding staff to provided direct tech-
nical assistance to communities.

The Housing Opportunity Program is currently undergo-
ing internal development and is expected to be launched 
in the coming months.



MAINE DEPARTMENT OF  
ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT

Still have questions?
Need more information? 

VISIT: MAINE.GOV/DECD/HOUSING-LEGISLATION



1/12/2023

1

Matt Panfil, AICP CUD, LEED AP BD+C, Planning Director

January 17, 2023

LD 2003 Review

LD 2003:

Background

An Act To Implement the Recommendations of the
Commission To Increase Housing Opportunities in

Maine by Studying Zoning and Land Use Restrictions

April 27, 2022

LD 2003 Rulemaking:

Background

• Anticipated to be completed in April 2023.

• GPCOG is advocating for transparency and 

community input into the rulemaking process.

1

2

3



1/12/2023

2

LD 2003:

Background

• Shoreland zoning ordinances still apply.

• Development must still demonstrate sufficient water 

and wastewater capacity.

• Rate of growth ordinances still allowed.

LD 2003:

Background

• Technical assistance will be available to implement 

ordinance updates, but $ amount and who will 

perform the assistance still undetermined.  GPCOG 

can provide technical assistance, but state has also 

said that they will provide the assistance.

LD 2003:

Background

• Future Comprehensive Plan updates will need to 

reflect that LD 2003 has been incorporated into 

community’s ordinances.

4

5

6



1/12/2023

3

LD 2003:

Background

• If updates not incorporated into ordinances, any 

ordinance or regulation that is not consistent with the 

law may be challenged as invalid.

4 Key Parts for North Yarmouth

North Yarmouth MAY, but does not have to, regulate short 
term rentals.

1. Municipal Role in Fair Housing / 
Short Term Rentals

7

8

9



1/12/2023

4

• North Yarmouth CANNOT prohibit at least one accessory 
dwelling unit (ADU) per lot.

• ADUs CANNOT count towards a rate of growth ordinance (if 

established).

• ADUs CAN have a maximum size standard but must be at 

least 190 square feet in area.

• Additional parking for ADUs CANNOT be required.

2. Accessory Dwelling Units

• Section 11.1 – Accessory Apartments of the Town of 
North Yarmouth Land Use Ordinance appears to comply 
with the intent of LD 2003, but may need some minor 
changes and/or clarifications.

2. Accessory Dwelling Units

• North Yarmouth’s current affordable housing density 
bonus:

• Grants a 20% net residential density bonus if 20% of 

the dwelling units remain affordable to low- and/or 

moderate-income residents for 25 years.

• Waives requirements of Residential Growth Limitation 

(already addressed by Land Use Ordinance).

3. Affordable Housing Density Bonus

10

11

12



1/12/2023

5

• To qualify LD 2003’s affordable housing density bonus, a 
development:

• Must be located in a growth area (Village Center and 

Village Residential Districts)

• Must be located in an area where multifamily dwelling 

units are allowed (Village Center and Village 

Residential Districts)

3. Affordable Housing Density Bonus

• To qualify LD 2003’s affordable housing density bonus, 
prices must reflect:

• For rentals: Affordable means household income is 

less than 80% of Area Median Income (AMI)

• For homeownership projects: Affordable means 

household income is less than or equal to 120% AMI.

3. Affordable Housing Density Bonus

• For more than ½ of units in the development, the 
rent/mortgage and other housing expenses will not 
exceed more than 30% of the household’s income.

• Controlled by Restrictive Covenant for at least 30 years.
• North Yarmouth’s AMI determined by Portland HMFA and 

adjusted by household size.
• Example: Household of 2 at 80% AMI = $71,520

Household of 4 at 80% AMI = $89,360

* Affordability and Area Median Income

13

14

15



1/12/2023

6

• Example: 1 BR Apt. Max Rent at 80% AMI = $1,676 
2 BR Apt. Max Rent at 80% AMI = $2,012 
3 BR Apt. Max Rent at 80% AMI = $2,324

* Affordability and Area Median Income

• LD 2003’s affordable housing density bonus:

• Allows for 2.5 times the number of units allowed per 

underlying maximum density.

• Reduces off-street parking requirement to a 

maximum of 2 spaces for every 3 dwelling units.

3. Affordable Housing Density Bonus

• North Yarmouth CANNOT eliminate or limit the affordable 
housing density bonuses in growth areas.  This means 
that North Yarmouth, to be consistent with LD 2003, may, 
depending on rulemaking process, need to make the 
following changes to Section 11.2 – Affordable Housing 
of the Land Use Ordinance:

3. Affordable Housing Density Bonus

16

17

18



1/12/2023

7

1. Amend the Net Residential Density Bonus to reflect the 
following:

• 20% bonus must be changed to allow for 2.5 times 

underlying maximum permitted density.

• Minimum 20% of units designated as affordable changed 

to minimum 50% of units designated as affordable.

• 25-year affordability term changed to 30-year term. 

3. Affordable Housing Density Bonus

2. Amend the Section 10.33 – Off-Street Parking to include 
provisions for affordable housing development parking 
requirements: Maximum 2 spaces for every 3 units.

3. Affordable Housing Density Bonus

• North Yarmouth CAN still 
regulate lot size but 
CANNOT limit lots to 
only 1 dwelling unit.

4. 2- to 4-Units Per Lot Requirements

19

20

21



1/12/2023

8

• Lot with 1 existing
dwelling unit:

4. 2- to 4-Units Per Lot Requirements

• Vacant lot:

4. 2- to 4-Units Per Lot Requirements

22

23

24



Town of North Yarmouth Select Board Meeting Minutes of January 17, 2023 
 Page 1 of 6 

Town of North Yarmouth 
Select Board 

Meeting Minutes of January 17, 2023, 7:00 PM-9:30 PM 
 
Call to Order: (1:17:11-1:17:54)- Members Present: Brian Sites, Chairperson, Amy Haile, V. Chair, Paul Hodgetts, 
Selectperson, Katherine Perrin, Selectperson, and Andrea Berry, Selectperson, and Diane Barnes, Town Manager. 
Chairperson Sites called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.  Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
History Minutes: (1:17:55-1:21:09)-Presented by Select Person Berry  
The Prince Memorial Library just celebrated its official 100th birthday on January 7th, 2023, but a library existed in 
Cumberland, and before that North Yarmouth, much earlier! The following history minute comes from Thomas 
Bennett, PML’s Library Director and local historian: “In 1747, Deacon John White of the First Congregational Church 
of North Yarmouth left 30 pounds in his will for the purchase of books.  Deacon White's largesse probably contributed 
to the establishment of a lending library in the area near the church, which is located on the Foreside in the present-
day town of Yarmouth. In December 1793, just prior to the founding of the Second Congregational Church of North 
Yarmouth, the names of 40 men and one woman were affixed to a document establishing the Second Social Library 
in North Yarmouth.  The original proprietors were residents of the village that would later become Cumberland, as 
well as of the Walnut Hill area [here in North Yarmouth]. The concept of a social library established by proprietors who 
paid a fee to belong and borrow books was not unique in the area, as one was established on Falmouth Neck in 
1766. The books of the Second Social Library in North Yarmouth were kept in the home of the appointed librarian.  
The Second Social Library in North Yarmouth was incorporated in 1817, and with the secession of Cumberland from 
North Yarmouth in 1821 became the First Social Library of Cumberland.  In 1921, the joint will of Carrol D. and Annie 
L. Prince of Woodfords listed a bequest of $35,000 to the town library, and Prince Memorial Library was incorporated 
in November 1921. The library opened to the public on January 7, 1923, and more than 600 books from the early 
Cumberland library joined the new books on the shelves.  The town of Cumberland assumed the assets and 
responsibilities of the library in 1968, and in 1972 North Yarmouth, whose residents had always used Prince Memorial 
Library, began contributing to its support…” ...and continue today through our taxes, roles on the Library Advisory 
Board and Friends of the Prince Memorial Library, by attending the library’s many events, and of course, borrowing 
books! Happy 100th Birthday Prince Memorial Library! 
 
Public Hearing:(1:21:10-1:59:25) First Amendment to Village Omnibus Municipal Tax Increment Financing 
District and Development Program.   
Chairperson Sites, seconded by Selectperson Perrin moved to open the public meeting for the Village 
Omnibus Municipal Tax Increment Financing District and Development Program. Vote 5 Yes/0 No.  
 
Alyssa Tibbetts from Jensen Baird was present to answer questions about the First Amendment to the Village District 
TIF. 
 
Peter Lindsay, 440 Mountfort Road hoped for more of a presentation. He wanted to know what lots were taken out of 
the district and which parts were being added? He asked for some background on why we are reviewing it. 
 
Alyssa Tibbetts stated that the original approval was in 2019 for 30 years. It identified several parcels that had potential 
to be developed. The goal of any TIF district is to identify areas where new value will be created with in the town. 
Provide an opportunity to capture that new assessed value so the tax revenue generated can be used for specific 
purposes that are outline in the development program.  In 2019, 231 acres were identified. Several of these areas 
have been developed into residential which is ok, but we have a few concerns long-term.  There is a lot of tax revenue 
generated from the residential projects and not enough projects to spend the revenue on.  It is best practice to review 
the statute, to see if it is still working and to amend it as needed. We need to look at other ways to use TIF revenue 
that is authorized by state law that we did not initially include in 2019.  One of the amendments to the project cost 
table at the end of the development program is to include an authorized use, (the ability to spend), on affordable 
housing. That was not authorized in the statute in 2019 so it’s a great opportunity for the community to amend the 
district to include it.  This amendment expands the use of the TIF revenue and shrinks the geographic boundaries of 
the community. In addition, to affordable housing there was another amendment to statute in 2019 that allowed TIF 
revenue to be used for public safety.  Amending the TIF district is the same as adopting a TIF district. This requires a 
public hearing. The town will hold a special meeting to vote on the amendment.  Once, the amended TIF passes it 
will go to the State of Maine’s Department of Economic and Community Development for approval. If this all passes 
it will be affective for the 2024 tax year. 
 
Diane Morrison, Prince Well Road asked about the amount allocated to the affordable housing and water 
infrastructure.  She felt the dollar amount did not seem adequate. 
 



Town of North Yarmouth Select Board Meeting Minutes of January 17, 2023 
 Page 2 of 6 

Brian Sites, chairperson stated the water infrastructure for number 7 of the statute is 1.5 million not 1,500. She had 
the dollar amount confused and had no further questions.  
 
Alyssa Tibbetts stated that these are estimates and are not audited by the state.  We have not assigned an amount 
to the affordable housing. 
 
Judy Potter, 551 Walnut Hill Road asked why we were adding parcel 425 Walnut Hill Road. Where is that? Diane 
Barnes, Town Manager advised it is part of Stone Post subdivision. Judy advised their septic is there. Diane Barnes 
advised it will not impact TIF value since it’s exempt property. 
 
Peter Lindsay, 440 Mountfort Road asked, how often do most towns review the TIF?   
 
Alyssa Tibbetts advised that towns budget for TIF yearly. Towns amend the TIF every 5-10 years.   
 
Mike Mallory, 551 Walnut Hill Road asked, when talking about affordable housing are we stuck with the State of Maine 
Threshold? 
 
Alyssa Tibbetts advised it is defined by statute, so the town cannot define the threshold for affordable housing. The 
State decides it.  
 
Virginia Van Dyke, 64 Delwin Drive did not understand why we were taking 100 acres out of the TIF that has value 
and add a small amount that has no value. If you take property out, can you put it back in? 
  
Alyssa Tibbetts stated that it is not desirable to have so much value in the TIF and no use for it. You want to make 
sure you have projects you are allowed to spend it on. If there is too much value and revenue generated it is 
appropriate to consider taking some value out.  You can put a parcel in but at the current value. 
 
Brian Sites, Chairperson advised that the amount of money we are bringing in outweighs the projects we apply it to. 
This is a very conservative step. We must keep looking at this. We did not know the explosion in residential housing 
would add so much value to the TIF. He is not worried about not having enough money to put toward projects.   
 
Bill Young, Sweetser Road asked how using TIF money for water infrastructure in a residential area pertains to 
commercial use of the TIF Fund. 
 
Alyssa Tibbets responded that a TIF district, when established must consist of 25 percent of the acreage that can be 
used for commercial use. A multi-unit property with one owner rented to two or more families is considered commercial 
activity for TIF use funds. 
 
Diane Morrison, Prince Well Road, resident had a question on #13 of the statute and confused on the dollar amount. 
It was 1.5 million not 1500. She had no further questions.  
 
Mike Mallory, 551Walnut Hill Road asked what is the difference between Multi Family use verses Multi Family 
commercial? 
 
Alyssa Tibbetts advised for TIF Purposes, any two or more units with one owner will be considered commercial and 
you would be allowed to use TIF Revenue. 
 
Selectperson, Paul Hodgetts wanted to know what piece is going into the TIF District? Why is it listed as a TIF piece 
of land?  
 
Chairperson, Brian Sites advised the land can sit in there with no value. They are deed restricted and are not going 
to be developed.  
 
Selectperson, Perrin wanted to make sure the school plot is removed from the TIF District.  
 
Chairperson Sites stated the school property is on the list to be removed.  
 
Alyssa Tibbetts explained you can spend TIF Funds on public property, but you cannot build anything for 
governmental purposes.   
 
Selectperson Perrin, seconded by Selectperson Berry moved to close the Public Hearing. Vote 5 Yes/0 No. 
 



Town of North Yarmouth Select Board Meeting Minutes of January 17, 2023 
 Page 3 of 6 

Chairperson Sites, seconded by Selectperson Hodgetts moved to recommend the adoption of the First 
Amendment to the Village TIF District. Vote 5 Yes/0 No. 
 
 
Consent Agenda: (2:00:15-2:00:27) 

A. Municipal Accounts Payable Warrants 
#61 $ 2,891.60 
#62 $ 49,076.75 

B. Municipal Payroll Warrants 
#59 $ 12,866.20  
#60 $ 40,757.47  

C. Select Board Minutes-January 3, 2023 

Selectperson Haile, seconded by Selectperson Berry moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. 

Vote 5 Yes/0 No. 

 
Public Comment: (2:00:28-2:07:32) 
Chairperson Sites stated that we have a good crowd but wanted to remind everyone that conversations are getting 
out of hand when the board is speaking. Please be polite and respectful. 
 
Katie Murphy, President of the NY Historical Society provided an update on the construction. They are getting water, 
electric and heat in place. In two weeks, they will have a community volunteer painting party. Anyone that is neat at 
painting should contact the Historical Society if they want to help. 
 
Link Merrill,1572 North Road. He has been corresponding with a few board members and he has not received a lot 
of response. Chairperson Sites did give him some information tonight. He has been trying to find out how many 
people have applied for the senior tax stabilization. Chairperson Sites told him around 300. It is important to know as 
it will affect our budget. If 300 of us don’t have to pay higher property taxes going forward; he does not think the state 
has enough money to fund it.  
 
He is trying to find out when we review the building permits from the prior CEO how many properties were not on the 
tax rolls. He knows two have been discovered. He talked to the town manager.  We know that some properties are 
not on the tax roll that should be. He understands we will not know that until we do a re-evaluation. He would like to 
know if we found additional properties. 
  
He is concerned with the purple house intersection. He is concern there are no setbacks on the sidewalk. He thinks 
it is a safety concern. He thinks it will be difficult to get the project approved if we do not set that sidewalk back from 
the road.  
 
He had questions about the Parsonage Road survey. The survey stated the road and sidewalk are not in the town’s 
right of way. We cannot maintain them. If the deed is correct, we cannot own that land.  
 
He stated Nicholas Thibeault is still listed on cemetery commission. He wants to know the process to fill that position 
as he still has several years on his term. It is an elected position.  
 
He is disappointed that we did not follow our ordinances with the Trudy Bird’s property. It is very clear that building 
should have had a sprinkler system and should have had a site plan review. He thinks it is a serious error and 
disappointed that the town approved it. 
 
Management Reports & Communications (2:07:25-2:17) 
EDSC-Selectperson Perrin- The committee is finalizing plans for the Forum Dialog event on January 26, 2023, at 
6:00PM.  
 
Zoning Board of Appeals-Selectperson Hodgetts- Stated that the next meeting is scheduled for January 18, 2023, 
5:30 PM.  Part II appeal Hearing on Deacon Hayes Commons.  
 
Parks-Selectperson Berry- Stated that they are evaluating the damage from tree falls obstructing trails from the 
December 23, 2022, storm.  If anyone sees an obstruction on town parks, notify the Park Committee or Town Manager 
and we will notify Public Works. Please do not attempt to remove tree fall yourself.  
 
 
 



Town of North Yarmouth Select Board Meeting Minutes of January 17, 2023 
 Page 4 of 6 

Recreation Advisory Board-Selectperson Haile- Stated that they meet twice a year. They have not meet yet this year. 
 
Planning Board-Selectperson Hodgetts- Stated that the December 13, 2022, meeting approved the NY Veterinary 
Hospital. Carriage Hill Subdivision was not ready, so it is postponed to a future date. Well and Good Brewing had a 
sketch plan review. Deacon Hayes Commons amendment was tabled until the ZBA does their review.  At the January 
10, 2023 meeting, the Water Line Solar Project was granted an extension for up to one year. The delay was between 
CMP and the Grid Operator.  
 
Joint Standing Committee-Selectperson Berry-Nothing to report. 
 
Waste Reduction Committee-Selectperson Berry-The committee spent some time establishing goals. We have an 
increase in garbage to garden compose bins. Please use them.  Food waste is the biggest costs that we pay for in 
our waste management. You will also see a new textile and recycling bin. You can donate shoes, cloths, and jewelry. 
Some will be shared; some will go to thrift options, and some will become filler. Head over to NY Variety. They have 
a new tetra pack recycling tool. They are the new holders for 4 and 6 packs of beer. They cannot be put in the recycle 
bin that eco main picks up.   
 
Living Well in NY-Selectperson Haile-Review of the charge and trying to establish a new charge to try to see where 
living well now fits into the community.  
 
Walnut Hill Parkway-Selectpersons Sites & Hodgetts- Nothing to report. 
.  
School Fund Committee Perrin-Last meeting was December 20, 2022. They have not meet again.  
 
Town Manager’s Report, Diane Barnes: (2:18-2:19:19) 
Playground Equipment 

The contractor was not successful in removing the playground equipment without damaging it.  We hope to have 

another opportunity in the spring to get another playground.  

Solar EV Charging Stations 

Fortunat Mueller, President of ReVision Energy will be attending the February 7, 2023, meeting to discuss and 

answer questions about the EV Charging Stations. 

Casella Automated System Update 

Casella’s route supervisor was able to ride the roads with Clark Baston, Public Works Director on January 11th.  He 

reported that they shouldn’t have any issues with any roads in North Yarmouth.  The next step is for Casella to get 

the information into the EasyRoute system and work with the Town on identifying new routes.  The estimated 

household count is 1537.  This means we will need to order approximately 3100 or more totes. 

Clark and Kody met with the Falmouth Public Works Director and looked at demo totes.  They all agreed that the 

Toter brand looks the best.  The next step is to go out to bid with Windham and Falmouth for the purchase of the 

Totes.  We will need to budget for the purchase and repair parts in the FY 24 budget. 

Old Business: (2:19:20-3:20:21) 

Board and Committee Appointment Process 

The feedback was reviewed by the Select Board and small changes made to the Board and Committee 

Appointment Document. Chairperson Sites will revise the document with the changes made and send it to Diane 

Barnes, The Town Manger so it can go to legal for review.  

Chairperson Sites seconded by Selectperson Perrin moved to accept the changes as reviewed and to send 

the document to legal. Vote 5 Yes/0 No. 

 

New Business: (3:20:29-3:38:00) 

MDOT Modification #1-Municipal Partnership Initiative (MPI) Agreement: 

This Modification amends a Three-Party Municipal Partnership Agreement that was executed by Maine DOT on 

9/29/2021, with the Portland Area Comprehensive Transportation System (PACTS), and the Municipality of North 

Yarmouth for proposed improvement to Cumberland and Walnut Hill Road.  The maximum amount of the 

agreement shall be increased by $12,000 from $650,000 to $662,000.   Additional PACTS MPI funds became 

available due to withdrawn projects.  The additional funding granted to W.I.N. #025813.00, by the Executive Board, 

was $6,000.  Chairperson Sites, Seconded by Selectperson Berry moved to approve modification #1 to the 

MPI Agreement for W.I.N. #025813.00 in the amount of $12,000 for a project estimate of $662,000 and 

authorize the Town Manager to execute the agreement. Vote 5 Yes/0 No.  

 

 



Town of North Yarmouth Select Board Meeting Minutes of January 17, 2023 
 Page 5 of 6 

Schedule Workshop for Results of the Fire Station Study-2/21/2023- 

Port City Architecture will be present to present Phase I of the Fire Station Study to the Select Board. This project 

was approved by the Select Board on July 19, 2022. The funding for the study is coming from the TIF reserve-

professional services. Chairperson Sites seconded by Selectperson Hodgetts moved to schedule a 

workshop on February 21, 2023, at 6:00pm to hear the results of Phase I of the Fire Station Study by Port 

City Architecture. Vote 5 Yes/0 No. 

Schedule Workshop to Discuss Budget Items- 3/7/2023- Selectperson Haile, seconded by Selectperson 

Perrin moved to schedule Budget workshop on March 07, 2023. Vote 5 Yes/0 No.  

 

Budget Schedule & Annual Town Meeting Schedule-Adoption- 

North Yarmouth Municipal Budget Schedule FY2024 6:00 PM- Select Board Budget Workshops 7:00 PM- Public 

Hearings/Select Board Meetings/Special Meetings 6:00 PM-Budget Committee Meetings  

March 21, 2023, Tuesday- Budget Workshop-Select Board 6PM Budget Introduction Regular Meeting-SB 7PM  

March 23, 2023, Thursday, Budget Workshop-Budget Committee 6PM Budget Introduction  

March 28, 2023, Tuesday- Budget Workshop-Select Board 6PM Budget Workshop  

March 30, 2023, Thursday, Budget Workshop-Budget Committee 6PM Budget Workshop  

April 04, 2023, Tuesday- Budget Workshop-Select Board 6PM Budget Workshop Regular Meeting-SB 7PM  

April 06, 2023, Thursday, Budget Workshop-Budget Committee 6PM Budget Workshop  

April 11, 2023, Tuesday- Budget Workshop-Select Board 6PM Budget Workshop  

April 13, 2023, Thursday, Budget Workshop-Budget Committee 6PM Budget Workshop  

April 18, 2023, Tuesday- Budget Workshop-Select Board 6PM Budget Workshop Regular Meeting-SB 7PM  

April 20, 2023, Thursday, Budget Workshop-Budget Committee 6PM Budget Workshop  

April 25, 2023, Tuesday- Budget Workshop-Select Board 6PM Budget Workshop  

April 27, 2023, Thursday, Budget Workshop-Budget Committee 6PM Budget Workshop  

June 17, 2023, Saturday, Annual Town Meeting 9AM 

Selectperson Haile seconded by Selectperson Perrin moved adopt the select board budget schedule as 

adopted and set the annual town meeting on June 17, 2023, at 9:00am. Vote 5 Yes/0 No.  

 
Any Other Business: (3:38:01-3:46:40) 
Selectperson Hodgetts stated The Planning Board had feedback that The Select Board Meeting dates were not 
communicated to them. Chairperson Sites said he would try to improve that communication. 
 
Selectperson Hodgetts stated we have a problem with the liaisons, and it needs to be addressed. Selectperson Haile 
asks him to articulate the problem. Selectperson Hodgetts advised he feels the EDSC liaison is overstepping their 
bounds. He feels the Liaison is more involved than he is with his committees. The EDSC Liaison will take emails and 
comments and collect data. Selectperson Hodgetts states as a selectperson you are not allowed to be on another 
committee.  Selectperson Perrin advised that she sits in the audience at EDSC. They planned the event on their own. 
She supports it and encourages neighbors to go but she had no role in the planning. The issue came up when they 
wanted to have a mechanism for e-mail feedback. The EDSC has no public e-mail. All the members are residence. 
No one wanted to use their personal e-mail. The board asked if they could use the liaisons public e-mail. The liaison 
stated yes and would forward the e-mails to them.  
 
Chairperson Sites feels we need to specify the liaison roll. We all need to have a little trust that everyone’s intentions 
are good. He does not know what Selectperson Perrin would gain by doing nefarious things with emails. He is just 
baffled by this conversation. Chairperson Sites states we will take up the liaison policy at a different time. Selectperson 
Berry suggested the conduct policy be ahead of the liaison policy.  
 
Adjournment: (3:46:41-3:47) 

  Selectperson Berry, seconded by Selectperson Haile moved to adjourn at 9:30pm. vote 5/0.  
 
  Karen Casale, Recording Secretary  
        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town of North Yarmouth Select Board Meeting Minutes of January 17, 2023 
 Page 6 of 6 

Select Board 
 
 
 
 

 ________________________________                             ______________________________ 
         Brian Sites, Chair                                                                  Amy Haile, Vice Chair 
 
 
 
 ________________________________                               _____________________________ 
         Paul Hodgetts                   Katherine Perrin 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Andrea Berry    

 



North Yarmouth Select Board 2022-2023

DRAFT Committee Appointment Process

Standing Committees with statutory responsibilities [LIST]

Task Responsible Party Recommended Timeline (6 Weeks)

Develop qualifications, desired skills/experience, expectations 

(including time commitment) at committee workshop and 

forward to Select Board Committee Chair and SB Liaison

As soon as practicable based on workshop agendas 

(review as necessary)

Advertise vacancy through all official town communication 

channels Town Manager 4 weeks and 2 weeks from application deadline

Coordinate outreach via committee Facebook, committee 

member outreach as appropriate/applicable Committee Chair 4 weeks and 2 weeks from application deadline

Forward all applications to Select Board Town Manager At deadline

Choose interview subcommittee of Select Board members 

and other qualified persons as appropriate Select Board 1 week before application deadline

Develop interview questions Interview Subcommittee 1 week before application deadline

Conduct interviews and discuss candidate qualifications Interview Subcommittee 1 week after application deadline

Recommend candidate(s) to Select Board for appointment Interview Subcommittee 2 weeks after application deadline

Discuss candidate(s) qualifications and vote on candidate(s) 

appointment per Town Charter Select Board

1st Select Board meeting following completion of 

interviews

Notify candidates not selected Town Manager Within a week after Select Board selection

Register candidate for appropriate MMA training Town Manager ASAP

Standing Committees [LIST]

Task Responsible Party Recommended Timeline (6 Weeks)

Notify Select Board of vacancy Committee Chair ASAP

Create job description with desired candidate qualifications 

and application deadline Committee Chair and SB Liaison 6 weeks from application deadline

Coordinate outreach via town website, town Facebook, and 

town weekly email Town Manager 4 weeks and 2 weeks from application deadline

Coordinate outreach via committee Facebook, committee 

member outreach Committee Chair 4 weeks and 2 weeks from application deadline

Complete application Candidate

Send all applications to Select Board liaison and committee 

chair Town Manager rolling basis

Develop interview subcommittee of committee chair and 

committee members Committee Chair 1 week before application deadline

Develop interview questions Candidate Review Subcommittee 1 week before application deadline

Approve interview questions for legality Town Manager 1 week before application deadline



North Yarmouth Select Board 2022-2023

DRAFT Committee Appointment Process

Task Responsible Party Recommended Timeline (6 Weeks)

Conduct interviews and discuss candidate qualifications Candidate Review Subcommittee 1 week after application deadline

Share candidate qualifications and recommendation with 

committee, hold vote to recommend candidate Candidate Review Subcommittee 2 weeks after application deadline

Recommend candidate to Select Board for appointment Candidate Review Subcommittee 2 weeks after application deadline

Discuss and vote on candidate appointment per Town Charter Select Board Meeting following recommendation

Discuss candidate(s) qualifications and vote on candidate(s) 

appointment per Town Charter Select Board 1st Select Board meeting following completion of interviews

Notify candidates not selected Town Manager Within a week after Select Board selection

Ad-Hoc Committees

Task Responsible Party Recommended Timeline (6 Weeks)

Notify Select Board of vacancy Committee Chair ASAP

Create job description with desired candidate qualifications 

and application deadline Committee Chair and SB Liaison 6 weeks from application deadline

Coordinate outreach via town website, town Facebook, and 

town weekly email Town Manager 4 weeks and 2 weeks from application deadline

Coordinate outreach via committee Facebook, committee 

member outreach Committee Chair 4 weeks and 2 weeks from application deadline

Complete application Candidate

Send applications to Select Board liaison and committee chair Town Manager rolling basis

Develop subinterview committee of committee chair and 

committee members Committee Chair 1 week before application deadline

Develop candidate questions Candidate Review Subcommittee 1 week before application deadline

Approve candidate questions for legality Town Manager 1 week before application deadline

Conduct interviews and discuss candidate qualifications Candidate Review Subcommittee 1 week after application deadline

Share candidate qualifications and recommendation with 

committee, hold vote to recommend candidate Candidate Review Subcommittee 2 weeks after application deadline

Recommend candidate to Select Board for appointment Candidate Review Subcommittee 2 weeks after application deadline

Discuss candidate(s) qualifications and vote on candidate(s) 

appointment per Town Charter Select Board 1st Select Board meeting following completion of interviews

Notify candidates not selected Town Manager Within a week after Select Board selection



 

 

Connectivity Point Design & Installation, LLC. // Corporate Headquarters: PO Box 1268, Auburn, Maine 04211 

Toll Free (866) 782-0200     Fax (207) 753-0200    connectivitypoint.com 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE 

CLIENT: North Yarmouth ME, Town Of 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE DATE: 1/31/2023 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE NUMBER: 8202201668 CO-1 Rev1 

PROJECT NAME: Audio Visual Installation & Broadcasting Equipment Upgrade – BID NO. 

2022-003 

PROJECT ADDRESS: 10 Village Square Rd., North Yarmouth ME 04097 

 

Connectivity Point Design and Installation, LLC. (CPDI) is pleased to submit for your review 

and approval the following proposal/quote. Please contact us with any questions you may 

have during your review. 

 

OVERVIEW 

CPDI will provide Audio Visual Hardware and services for Town of North Yarmouth. 

This Change order is to include AV systems in the additional building spaces in which were 

excluded from the Bid RFP. 

Merrill Room – Projection screen 

Anderson Room – Camera and Microphones 

Gymnasium – installed and portable production equipment. 

Infrastructure – video switcher 

 

Change Order SCOPE OF WORK 

Merrill Room projection screen. CPDI bid a fixed frame as a concern of electrical power. 

Customer is willing to install a powered screen. Credit for fixed screen is applied to cost of 

electric screen. A new Da-Lite tab tension electric wall mounted screen (65”x116” 133”dig 

16:10, HD Progressive 1.1 high contrast) will be installed just below the acoustic panels. 

Anderson room will be expanded with video and microphone hardware. Two PTZ camera’s, 

one Microphone array, one HDMI in/out wall plate, and one camera plate.  See drawing for 

layout. 

Gym –System design includes feeds for SDI via direct cable.  Two channels of Line level XLR 

In/out jacks will be available via an RDL analog to Dante transmitter. 

Upgraded SDI video switcher from the owner furnished 12x12 to a new 20x20.  

An “operators” station will be installed in the office area for remote management and 

production.  Two 22” LCD displays will provide a preview and/or operator view for all video 

devices.  Display routing will be via iPad.  An AV network jack will be provided for operator’s 

computer. (Manual video switcher control). 

http://www.connectivitypoint.com/


 

 

Connectivity Point Design & Installation, LLC. // Corporate Headquarters: PO Box 1268, Auburn, Maine 04211 

Toll Free (866) 782-0200     Fax (207) 753-0200    connectivitypoint.com 

 2 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE 

 

Change Order Equipment List: 

AV Equipment 

Manufacturer Description Model Qty 

Da-Lite 
FullVision border-less fixed frame projection screen 
164" HD Prg 1.1 cont 

FC11C87X139 -1 

Da-Lite 
Tensioned Contour Electrol 65"x116" 133" HD Prg 
1.1 Contrast 16:10 

89978LS 1 

1beyond 
1 Beyond PTZ Intelligent Camera, 20x Optical Zoom, 
White 

IV-CAMPTZ-20-W-1B 2 

Sennheiser 
TeamConnect Ceiling 2 beamforming ceiling array mic 2 
Dante and 1 analog 

509178 1 

AVProedge ConferX HDBT Wall Plate Tx/Rx Basic Kit HDMI AC-CXWP-HDMO-BKT 1 

BM Design 
Smart Videohub 20x20 - SD/HD/Ultra HD 6G-SDI Mixed 
Format Router 

VHUBSMART6G2020 1 

LG 22" 1920x1080 IPS Panel VGA, HDMI1.4 Monitor - Black LG/22BK430H-B 1 

BM Design Mini Converter UpDownCross HD - SDI and HDMI CONVMUDCSTD/HD 1 

AVProedge ConferX HDBT Wall Plate Tx/Rx Basic Kit HDMI AC-CXWP-HDMO-BKT 1 

Crestron DM Lite – HDMI® over CATx Receiver, Surface Mount HD-RX-101-C-E 1 

Crestron DM Lite – HDMI® over CATx Transmitter, Surface Mount HD-TX-101-C-E 1 

SnapAV 
Araknis Networks® 310 Series L2 Managed Gigabit Switch 
PoE+ 

AN-310-SW-R-24-POE 1 

CPDI Anderson & Gym Camera Plate CPDI 1 

RDL 
Gym -Wall-Mounted Bi-Directional Mic/Line Dante 
Interface 4 x 2 

DD-RN42 1 

CPDI Bulk Cat and SDI cable CPDI 1 

 

 

 

  

http://www.connectivitypoint.com/


 

 

Connectivity Point Design & Installation, LLC. // Corporate Headquarters: PO Box 1268, Auburn, Maine 04211 

Toll Free (866) 782-0200     Fax (207) 753-0200    connectivitypoint.com 

 3 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE 

Updated Functional Description: 

Audio System for Merrill, Grover, Anderson rooms:  

The specific Dante version wireless microphones are not available at this time. The DSP was 

updated to accommodate analog inputs from the wireless microphone receivers. 

• A 12-input analog Biamp forte’ will manage wireless microphones while a digital 8 

input Dante DSP will be used for ceiling microphones. 

A new compact scalable Clearone wireless microphone system will be installed.  

• 16 channels of wireless receivers will be installed via two 8ch units with Dante 

outputs. Only 12 of the 16 wireless receivers will be used at this time. 

• Two wireless antennas will be installed (Merrill & Grover). Receiver chassis antennas 

will daisy chained for additional channels.  

• As specified: 

o 10x wireless goose neck push to talk transmitters 

o 1x Lavalier microphone 

o 1x Handheld microphone. 

o Charging stations for all microphones. To be installed in AV rack. 

Ceiling Microphone arrays will be used for Camera tracking and audience pickup. 

• Merrill - Two new ceiling mounted Sennheiser microphone arrays will be installed  

• Grover -One new wall mounted (above airwall) Shure MXA920 microphone arrays 

will be installed. This Microphone will be used for camera tracking and audience 

pickup. See graphic. 

• Anderson – One new ceiling mounted Sennheiser microphone arrays will be installed  

New pendent ceiling speakers and wall mounted column speakers will be utilized in the 

space. 

Merrill – 6 speakers utilizing 3 zones. 

Grover – 2 speakers utilizing a Left/Right zones. 

Anderson – 4 speakers utilizing 1 zone. 

 

Video System:   

HDMI System –  

The projection system will consist of a motorized 133” screen and Laser WUXGA projector.  

The projection screen will operator via control system and manual button. The projector will 

be controlled via the Extron system and receive HDMI video from the switcher. 

A mobile cart with a wireless HDMI receiver will provide as a confidence monitor or 

presentation monitor to the Merrill room. 

A Barco ClickShare will be available for user to wirelessly connect to the projection system.  

The ClickShare supports BYOD conferencing. (Guest ability to host their own meeting using 

room equipment.) 

http://www.connectivitypoint.com/


 

 

Connectivity Point Design & Installation, LLC. // Corporate Headquarters: PO Box 1268, Auburn, Maine 04211 

Toll Free (866) 782-0200     Fax (207) 753-0200    connectivitypoint.com 

 4 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE 

A built in Room PC will be available for building use supporting conferencing and 

presentation. 

SDI system – 

All camera’s and “Broadcast” devices are SDI video based.  The SDI system includes a 

20x20 matrix switcher, a Manual video production switcher, and an automatic production 

switcher. 

A Black Magic Atem2 production studio will allow for a manually switched production using 

the customers laptop.  

A 1beyond video system will perform automatic camera tracking and switching functions. 

The installed PTZ cameras will follow the room conversation based on who is speaking. The 

1beyond server receives information from the audio system giving it the ability for cameras 

to be pan, tilt, zoom, and switch between people, as the conversation moves around the 

room.  

• The 1beyond server includes “windowing functions” allowing for side-by-side images 

of people and content or “close and wide shots” of the room. The 1bedyond server 

requires custom configuration depending on customer use needs (CPDI has 

developed a base configuration for Town Hall systems). 

 

Merrill Room: 3x PTZ camera’s and one camera wall plate will be installed in the Merrill 

room for full room and participant capture.  

• Two cameras will be mounted on either side of the air wall at an ideal height of 7” 

AFF. These two cameras will cover the meeting space to pick up any of the town 

council.  

• The third camera will be mounted on the wall outside the AV rack room. This camera 

will capture lectern and audience shots. 

• Camera plate consists of one SDI in and XLR audio out. 

• HDMI input plate for presentation 

Grover Room: 3x PTZ camera’s and one camera wall plate will be installed in the Grover 

room for full room and participant capture.  

• Two cameras will be mounted at the back of the room (just above the entry doors 

side by side as close as possible). These two cameras will cover the meeting space to 

pick up any of the town council or presentations. The 1beyond system knows to use 

the two cameras to always switch to a “close-up” shot. As one camera is active the 

second camera locates the new shot.  

• The third camera will be mounted on the opposite side of the room to cover the 

audience locations. Because of limited cable pathways the front camera will be 

mounted to the side of the room with the cables being hidden by existing sound 

absorption panels. 

• Camera plate consists of one SDI in and XLR audio out. 

• HDMI input plate for presentation 

 

http://www.connectivitypoint.com/


 

 

Connectivity Point Design & Installation, LLC. // Corporate Headquarters: PO Box 1268, Auburn, Maine 04211 

Toll Free (866) 782-0200     Fax (207) 753-0200    connectivitypoint.com 

 5 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE 

Anderson Room: 2x PTZ camera’s and one camera wall plate will be installed in the Grover 

room for full room and participant capture.  

• Two cameras will be mounted at the back of the room toward the sides of the room. 

Customer to confirm room setup and verify location. Camera plate consists of one 

SDI in and XLR audio out. 

• HDMI input plate for presentation 

• HDMI output plate for mobile cart. 

 

Control System: An Extron Control system will be installed to seamlessly manage the 

entire AV and broadcast system. The control system will include multiple touch screens 

appropriately sized with a custom graphic interface for ease of use.  

• One 7” wall mounted touch screen will be installed in Merrill next to the entry door. 

This will provide room controls for standard meetings and events.  

o Room mode selection – Divide or Combine – Collaboration or Presentation. 

o Projector on/off  

o Presentation source select – Room PC, Wall plate, Clickshare 

o Speaker and Microphone control 

o Camera PTZ control with Auto Tracking on/off.  

o Auto tracking layout modes 

o Record start/stop. 

• One 10” iPad will be installed into the office. This iPad will be connected to the 

building Wi-Fi for portable use. The iPad will act as the master AV controller.  

o Room mode selection – Divide or Combine – Collaboration or Presentation. 

o Projector on/off  

o Presentation source select – Room PC, Wall plate, Clickshare 

o Speaker and Microphone control 

o Camera PTZ control with Auto Tracking on/off 

o Full matrix routing of SDI and HDMI switcher 

 

An “operators” station will be installed in the office area for remote management and 

production. Two 22” LCD displays will provide a preview and/or operator view for all video 

devices. Display routing will be via iPad. An AV network jack will be provided for operator’s 

computer. (Manual video switcher control). 

Control of the Black Magic SDI matrix and Atem video switcher will be via Blackmagic 

software. Any laptop connected to the AV system will be capable of operation.  

 

USB AV 

The AV system microphone and camera mix will be available as a USB AV device for 

conferencing computers. A USB3.0 Wall plate will be provided for a user device 

conferencing. The Barco ClickShare will support wireless BYOD conferencing. When the click 

share is selected USB AV device can be switched to the ClickShare. 

http://www.connectivitypoint.com/


 

 

Connectivity Point Design & Installation, LLC. // Corporate Headquarters: PO Box 1268, Auburn, Maine 04211 

Toll Free (866) 782-0200     Fax (207) 753-0200    connectivitypoint.com 

 6 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE 

 

 

 

 

http://www.connectivitypoint.com/


 

 

Connectivity Point Design & Installation, LLC. // Corporate Headquarters: PO Box 1268, Auburn, Maine 04211 

Toll Free (866) 782-0200     Fax (207) 753-0200    connectivitypoint.com 

 7 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE 

      

Ceiling Pendent Speakers                             Grover Column Speakers 

 

    

Grover - Shure MXA 920 

 

 

  

http://www.connectivitypoint.com/


 

 

Connectivity Point Design & Installation, LLC. // Corporate Headquarters: PO Box 1268, Auburn, Maine 04211 

Toll Free (866) 782-0200     Fax (207) 753-0200    connectivitypoint.com 

 8 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE 

 

Complete equipment list including CO1 additions and design updates. 

 

AV Equipment 

Manufacturer Description Model Qty 

  Audio system     

Biamp TesiraForte (12 x 8, AEC, USB, AVB) TesiraFORTE AVB CI 1 

Biamp 
DSP with 4 integrated PoE+ ports. AVB & Dante, 2x2 analog I/O, 
Stereo USB a 

TesiraFORTE X 800 1 

Biamp 8 channel, 175W digital networked amplifier Tesira AMP-8175R 1 

Biamp 6.5-inch coaxial pendant loudspeaker, sunshine profile,  70V/100V Desono P6-SM 10 

Yamaha Yamaha Pro Slim Line Array Loudspeaker VXL1W-16 2 

Yamaha 
Yamaha Pro Wall Mount Bracket for Slim Line Array VXL1 Series 
Speakers 

YAC-WMB-L1W 2 

Clearone WS880  M550 (537-563 MHz) 910-6000-808-C 2 

Clearone Extension Antenna Kit 50'  M550 (537-563 MHz) 910-6005-018 6 

Clearone Extension Antenna Combiner 3way 910-6005-300 (3way) 2 

Clearone Gooseneck Microphone 18" Neck 910-6002-188-C 10 

Clearone Handheld Microphone 910-6003-008-C 1 

Clearone Belt Pack 910-6004-008-C 1 

Clearone Lavalier Mic 910-6004-010 1 

Sennheiser TeamConnect Ceiling 2 beamforming ceiling array mic 2 Dante  509178 3 

Middle 
Atlantic 

Microphone mounting from truss CPDI 3 

Shure SHURE MXA920AL-R Microphone Array and mounting 274351 2 

  SDI system:     

BlackMagic 
Smart Videohub 20x20 - SD/HD/Ultra HD 6G-SDI Mixed Format 
Router 

VHUBSMART6G2020 1 

BlackMagic 
SWATEMPSW1ME4K ATEM 1 M / E Production Studio 4K 
Production Switcher 

SWATEMPSW1ME4K 1 

BlackMagic Mini Converter UpDownCross HD - SDI and HDMI CONVMUDCSTD/HD 8 

BlackMagic 
12G-CROSS HDMI/SDI 4K Ultra HD Cross Converter  Scaling 
Frame Rate 

12G-CROSS 1 

Marshall 
Electronics 

Broadcast IP/RS232/RS422 PTZ Camera Controller VS-PTC-IP 1 

LG 22" 1920x1080 IPS Panel VGA, HDMI1.4 Monitor - Black LG/22BK430H-B 2 

Crestron 1 Beyond PTZ Intelligent Camera, 20x Optical Zoom, White IV-CAMPTZ-20-W-1B 8 

http://www.connectivitypoint.com/


 

 

Connectivity Point Design & Installation, LLC. // Corporate Headquarters: PO Box 1268, Auburn, Maine 04211 

Toll Free (866) 782-0200     Fax (207) 753-0200    connectivitypoint.com 

 9 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE 

Crestron 
1 Beyond Automate™ VX Pro Voice-Activated, Multi-Camera 
Switching Solution 

IV-SAM-VXP-1B 1 

Crestron 1 Beyond Camera Systems Remote Professional Services IV-PROSERVICE-1B 1 

  Video:     

AVProdege 
18Gbps HDMI  8x8 Matrix w/ Dual Audio Deembedding/Matrix 
(Full HDR, 4K60 4: 

AC-MX88-AUHD-NSFS 1 

Teradek Teradek Spark 4K Wireless AV kit Transmitter H.264  TX/RX kit Spark 4k 1 

Barco CX-30 ClickShare Conference Set TAA Compliant - Black R9861513US 1 

AVProdege ConferX HDBT Wall Plate Tx/Rx Basic Kit HDMI AC-CXWP-HDMO-BKT 3 

Crestron DM Lite – HDMI® over CATx Receiver, Surface Mount HD-RX-101-C-E 1 

Crestron DM Lite – HDMI® over CATx Transmitter, Surface Mount HD-TX-101-C-E 1 

        

Sony 7300LM WUXGA Laser Projector / White VPLFHZ85/W 1 

Middle 
Atlantic 

Projector Mounting multiple 1 

Da-Lite 
Tensioned Contour Electrol 65"x116" 133" HD Prg 1.1 Contrast 
16:10 

89978LS 1 

AVProdege 
HDMI HDBaseT  Extender Kit. 4K  Ext w Bi Direct 12V Power, 
RS232, IR 

AC-EX70-UHD-BKT 1 

        

Sony 75" 3840 x 2160 4K HDR LED Display 16/7, 1yr warranty - Black Sony/FWD75X81CH/AL 1 

Middle 
Atlantic 

Large Fusion Mobile AV Cart-Height Adjustable - Black LPAUB 1 

Middle 
Atlantic 

Component Storage Panel, Interface CSMP9X12 1 

Middle 
Atlantic 

LARGE SHELF W/ STORAGE FCA613 1 

Middle 
Atlantic 

Misc - Power cable and strip   1 

C2G HDMI Ultra/12 12' HDMI Cable 26-663-12 1 

        

  USB     

Inogeni Inogeni Toggle - USB 3.0 SWITCHER Toggle 1 

Custom HDMI & USB3.0 Wall Plate CPDI 1 

Marshall 
electronics 

3G/HD-SDI & HDMI to USB-C Converter (USB3.0/2.0) VAC-23SHUC  1 

CPDI USB Cables CPDI 1 

        

  Control:     

Extron TLP Pro 725M 7" Wall Mounted Touch Panel-White 60-1563-03 1 

Extron IPCP Pro 360 IP Link Pro Control Proc., LL UI Upgrade 60-1432-01A 1 

Araknis Araknis Networks® 310 Series L2 Managed Gigabit Switch PoE+ AN-310-SW-R-24-POE 1 

http://www.connectivitypoint.com/


 

 

Connectivity Point Design & Installation, LLC. // Corporate Headquarters: PO Box 1268, Auburn, Maine 04211 

Toll Free (866) 782-0200     Fax (207) 753-0200    connectivitypoint.com 

 10 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE 

Apple Ipad - OFE     

        

Middle 
Atlantic 

ERK Series 22” Wide AV Rack ERK-3525-AV 1 

Middle 
Atlantic 

AV Rack Parts   1 

SnapAV 
WattBox® 1U Integrated Faceplate IP Power Conditioner | 8 

Individually Mete 
WB-800CH1U-IPVM-8 1 

SDI SDI from GYM to Merrill Rack   1 

RDL Wall-Mounted Bi-Directional Mic/Line Dante Interface 4 x 2 DD-RN42 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ESTIMATOR:  Adam Krawic, Audio/Visual Estimator & Design Engineer 

  

http://www.connectivitypoint.com/


 

 

Connectivity Point Design & Installation, LLC. // Corporate Headquarters: PO Box 1268, Auburn, Maine 04211 

Toll Free (866) 782-0200     Fax (207) 753-0200    connectivitypoint.com 

 11 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE 

INVESTMENT SUMMARY For Change Order 1 Only: 

 

Labor $11,864.00 

Material $23,695.11 

Freight $1,500.00 

Subtotal $ 37,059.11 

Sales Tax Exempt 

Project TOTAL $ 37,059.11 

 

The total lump sum for this proposal/quote is $ 37,059.11 which includes all tax, material, 

labor, equipment, supplies, travel expenses and misc. expenses. Excluded from this 

proposal/quote are any adds, moves, or changes during the project, which will be billed 

separately from the original proposal/quote. 

Alternative financial options available. Please contact your Account Executive for 

more information. 

 

AUTHORIZATION 

 

Dear Town of North Yarmouth, 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE NUMBER: 820221668 CO-1 Rev1 

By signing below, I am accepting this proposal/quote and the attached terms and 

conditions. 

 

Customer Authorized Signature: ______________________________  Date: __________ 

 

Customer Print Name: _____________________ Customer Title: ____________________ 

 

Connectivity Point Design & Installation, LLC. 

CPDI Authorized Signature, Date 1/31/2023 

 

CPDI Print Name: Dennis Masse    Title: Account Executive 

 

 

Dennis Masse 

http://www.connectivitypoint.com/


 

 

Connectivity Point Design & Installation, LLC. // Corporate Headquarters: PO Box 1268, Auburn, Maine 04211 

Toll Free (866) 782-0200     Fax (207) 753-0200    connectivitypoint.com 

 12 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE 

NOTES AND EXCLUSIONS 

The following activities are not included unless specifically listed in the above-detailed Scope 

of Work; and if required, additional charges may apply: 

• The quoted price does NOT reflect prevailing wage. 

• No cable removal is included in this proposal/quote. 

• No wiring permit is included in this proposal/quote. 

• All work is scheduled for regular business hours. 

• Technicians must have free and clear access to all areas being cabled. 

• Improvement to building grounding system. 

• Underground trenching or boring. 

• Concrete/asphalt cutting or patching. 

• Architecture or Engineer design or Consulting fees. 

• Engineered stamped drawings. 

• Cutting, patching, painting. 

• All electrical is provided and installed by others. 

• Any changes to the scope of work must be submitted in writing prior to the work being 

performed. 

• This proposal/quote does not include labor to move furniture, PC or other end-user 

equipment that will preclude CPDI from performing their duties. 

• No lift is included in this proposal/quote. 

• This price is for riser rated cable non-plenum type CMR unless specified otherwise above. 

If plenum rated cable type CMP is desired or required it can be provided at an additional 

cost to this proposal/quote.   

• Patch cords are not included in this proposal/quote and can be provided for under a 

separate proposal/quote if needed. 

• All areas to be free of asbestos and lead-based paint.  

http://www.connectivitypoint.com/


 

 

Connectivity Point Design & Installation, LLC. // Corporate Headquarters: PO Box 1268, Auburn, Maine 04211 

Toll Free (866) 782-0200     Fax (207) 753-0200    connectivitypoint.com 

 13 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

• Unless otherwise included in the pricing table, the amounts outlined in this Proposal/Quote are exclusive of all 

city, state and federal excise taxes, including, without limitation, taxes on manufacturer, sales, receipts, gross 

income occupation, use, and similar taxes. Whenever applicable, any tax or taxes shall be added to the 

invoice as a separate charge to be paid by the Owner. 

• In the event of significant delay or price increase of material, equipment, or supplies occurring during the 

performance of the contract through no fault of Connectivity Point Design and Installation, LLC, the contract 

sum, time of completion or contract requirements shall be equitably adjusted by Change Order in accordance 

with the procedures of the Contract documents. A change in price of an item of material, equipment, or 

supplies will be considered significant when the price of an item increases 10% between the date of this 

Signed Quote and the date of installation. Please discuss further with your account executive for clarification.  

• The Proposal/Quote is valid for fifteen (15 days) from the date below. After this date please contact CPDI to 

confirm that the quoted price can be honored. 

• Additions to this Proposal/Quote will be priced separately as Change Orders. 

• Payment for materials and freight will be provided upon delivery of materials to the location at no less than 

10% or $10,000.00 of the total materials cost. (There may be one (1) or multiple shipments on one (1) 

invoice.) 

• 50% payment for the labor of the project will be provided upon the start of the installation of the materials 

(after the materials have shipped) and then the other 50% upon the completion of the project.  

• Payment for the bond will be provided after the execution of a signed contract and acceptance of this 

purchase order.  

• Equipment will be sent to the delivery address specified between 8:30 AM to 4:30 PM (Monday-Friday) and 

with notice from Connectivity Point Design & Installation, LLC to the Town when a shipment is expected to 

arrive. Staff will be available to allow employees of Connectivity Point Design & LLC to enter the facility and 

place the equipment in a pre-designated location. If a shipment date changes, Connectivity Point Design & 

Installation, LLC will inform the Town Manager, Diane Barnes, in a reasonable time frame.  

• If unknown conditions affect Connectivity Point’s ability to complete the work for the stated price, that is not 

the fault of Connectivity Point, we will suspend work and notify the owner immediately. 

• CPDI shall conduct itself in a manner that is compliant with OSHA. Likewise, Owner must notify CPDI, in 

advance of CPDI commencing its work pursuant to this proposal/quote, of any present or potentially 

hazardous condition located at the job site(s) at which CPDI will perform its work. The owner is obligated to 

provide a worksite that is OSHA compliant. 

• Owner shall hold harmless and indemnify CPDI and its respective officers, directors, employees and agents 

from and against any claim, loss, damages, and liability pertaining to bodily injury, property damage, 

personal injury, governmental fines or assessments or any other type of claim, arising out of or occurring in 

connection with the services provided by CPDI pursuant to this proposal/quote except to the extent to have 

resulted from the negligence of CPDI. Such indemnification shall include but not be limited to attorneys’ fees 

incurred in defending such claims. Owner specifically waives any statutory immunity conferred upon it as an 

employer under any workers’ compensation act (including but not limited to the Maine Workers’ 

Compensation Act, 39-A M.R.S.A. §104, and its successors, the New Hampshire Workers’ Compensation Act 

and the Massachusetts Workers Compensation Act). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.connectivitypoint.com/


 

 

Connectivity Point Design & Installation, LLC. // Corporate Headquarters: PO Box 1268, Auburn, Maine 04211 

Toll Free (866) 782-0200     Fax (207) 753-0200    connectivitypoint.com 

 14 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE 

PROJECT STANDARDS/QUALITY ASSURANCE 

• All cables will be tested to the applicable performance standard. 

• Test results will be provided to the owner in a digital format suitable for printing. 

• All faceplates and patch panels will be mechanically labeled with plastic-type label tape. 

• A hand-drawn As Built will be left at the job site for the customer’s use. 

• A mechanically generated As Built will be provided so long as an appropriate digital file is provided by the 

customer for this purpose. 

• Cables can be mechanically labeled at each end, if desired, at an additional charge. 

• CPDI has certified structured cabling, fiber, and data center staff to support your design and installation 

needs. 

o Registered Communications Distribution Designers (RCDD), BICSI 

• CPDI has certified Systems Engineers for all your telephony system requirements. 

o Allworx, Mitel, NEC 

• CPDI has certified security staff to support your design and installation needs. 

o Kantech, Keyscan, DSC, exacqVision, Axis, Avigilon, Hikvision 

• CPDI has certfied audio-visual staff to support your design and installtion service needs.  

o Atlona Certified Technologist, Barco Unisee Specialist, Biamp TesireForte, Biamp VoIP, CTS, CTS, 

DMC-D-4K, Clearone ProAudio Specialist, Crestron CCT-001, Crestron DMC-E-4K, Crestron 

RL101, Crestron Programming 1, Dante Level 1 & 2, Extron AV Associate, Exxtron GC3 Control 

Associate, Extron School of Emerging Technologies, Lightspeed TopCat Certified, Lutron Lighting, 

Mersive Solsticec Part 1, Vaddio Audio-Visual Bridge Matrix Pro, Vaddio AutoTrak 2.0 

 

CRAFTMANSHIP WARRANTY 

Connectivity Point Design and Installation warrants that our work to be free from defects for a period of one (1) 

year from the date of Substantial Completion. All material, equipment and workmanship supplied under the 

signed contract are covered under this warranty. 

 

This warranty excludes and remedy for damage or defect caused by: (1) abuse, (2) modifications not executed 

by the contractor, (3) improper or insufficient maintenance, including any improper maintenance of the site 

conditions where the work was performed; (4) improper operations, or (5) acts of God. This warranty is not in 

lieu of or supersede any applicable manufacturer’s warranty. 

 

Upon project completion, Connectivity Point Design and Installation will provide a dated warranty letter verifying 

that for the length of [one year] after date of installation, Connectivity Point shall correct any damage or 

defective work promptly once notified. 

http://www.connectivitypoint.com/


 

 

Connectivity Point Design & Installation, LLC. // Corporate Headquarters: PO Box 1268, Auburn, Maine 04211 

Toll Free (866) 782-0200     Fax (207) 753-0200    connectivitypoint.com 
 15 

PROPOSAL/QUOTE 

  

 

http://www.connectivitypoint.com/


OLVER ASSOCIATES INC. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERS 

Ms. Diane Barnes, Town Manager 
Town of North Y annouth 
10 Village Square Road 
North Yannouth, Maine 04097 

January 10, 2023 

RE: Walnut Hill & Cumberland Road Pedestrian Improvements 
Preliminary Opinion of Costs 

Dear Diane: 

As requested, we have prepared a preliminary opinion of cost for the planned Pedestrian 
Safety Improvements project on Walnut Hill Road and Cumberland Road. The scope of 
the project consists of upgrading the intersection of Cumberland Road and Pea Lane to 
meet ADA standards, as well as drainage improvements and reconfiguration of the 
intersection of Cumberland Road and Walnut Hill Road. That segment of work will include 
providing 650 linear feet of new sidewalk and 800 linear feet of buried drainage with about 
8 catch basins. 

Our preliminary opinion of cost suggests that the project budget should be about $600,000. 
We understand that prior scoping for the project had determined a budget ofup to $650,000 
might be required. Based on the conceptual design we had presented to the Town, it is 
hoped that the work can be completed for a slightly reduced budget. Given the recent 
bidding climate, cost of fuel and materials, and the abundance of work for contractors, we 
would suggest that the entire $650,000 remain reserved until the bidding process is 
completed. That will hopefully provide the funds needed even if bids are over the current 
estimate. 

TEL. (207) 223-2232 

FAX (207) 223-5448 

290 MAIN STREET 

P.O. BOX679 

WINTERPORT, MAINE 04496 



OLVER ASSOCIATES INC. 

Ms. Diane Barnes, Town Manager 
January 10 , 2023 
Page 2 

The breakdown of the costs is provided below: 

PRELIMINARY-OPINION FOR CUMBERLAND ROAD & WALNUT HILL ROAD 
PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS 

4 

20

450 

120

100

250 

125

200

1 
5 

3 
110

650 

20

70 

460

170 

200

100

1 
3 500 

1 
1 

4 

6 
1 
1 

SUBTOTAL ESTIMA1E 441 100 .00

Ins c-tion_Allowan��'---------------·--+--------------4 ·=--=-50=--->=--'00=----=0=.0=----=0-------4
i-----tt-----t Conti�D£Y_,,_Al=l=owan�=ce"'--------+--------1--=------�5 000 .00

Total 596 100 .00

Rounded $ 600 ,000 .00



OLVER ASSOCIATES INC. 

Ms. Diane Barnes, Town Manager 
January 10, 2023 
Page 3 

If you have any questions, or need additional information at this time, please let us know. 

:,.\\\\\\\\\1111111//ll/f///;, �c OF' � 
# '\ l, ........... If ,f � 

�,�..
.. 

·•·/+� 
�,:,.,.• ·•("'�

f!f§ : MANDY •• �
�*: HOLWAY \*§ 
�-o: OLVER :ei:� 
;::0, No. 5765 •"'� �o• •��
� ....-•. .·� §:ff % �· r. ., §f'
� J':•.9cn�s£;.v.•1� � � "I ···••" C � � 

� ONA\. l,� 

'1/////J//111111111\\\\\\\\'\ 

MHO/sb 

2672/090 

Very truly yours, 

OL VER ASSOCIATES INC.

ay Olver P.E., Vice-President 
Services Manager 



A.H. Grover  Skid Steer Services, LLC J. Pratt Construction, Inc.

Item Description Bid Price   Bid Price   Bid Price   

1 Crossing Complete $375,298.00 $394,578.00 $409,898.00

2 Add Alternat 1: Raise Road $7,000.00 $12,578.00 $2,500.00

3 Add Alternate 2: Guard Rail $5,575.00 $13,578.00 $4,400.00

Total of All Lump Sum Bid Items $387,873.00 $420,734.00 $416,798.00

Storey Brothers, Inc St. Laurent & Son, Inc

Item Description Bid Price   Bid Price   

1 Crossing Complete $471,945.00 $698,897.00

2 Add Alternat 1: Raise Road $9,730.00 $19,250.00

3 Add Alternate 2: Guard Rail $5,340.00 $4,850.00

Total of All Lump Sum Bid Items $487,015.00 $722,997.00

Bid Tabulation for the Sweetser Road Stream Crossing Project

For the Town of North Yarmouth, Maine

Bids Opened January 24, 2023 at 10:00am

Page 1 of 1

Dirigo Engineering

2 Dirigo Drive

Fairfield, ME  04937

207-453-2401



Bid Opening 

Tuesday, January 24, 2023 

Town Manager’s Office 

10:00AM 

 

Present:  Diane Barnes, Town Manager 

    Clark Baston, Public Works Director 

 

Contractors:  Brian Delano J. Pratt Construction, Inc. 

           Robert Storey Storey Brothers, Inc. 

                         Polly Sewall A. H. Grover, Inc. 

                         Matt McGovern A. H. Grover, Inc. 

                         Corey LaRue St. Laurent & Son, Inc. 

 

The following bids were received and publicly opened at 10:00AM: 

 

1. Skid Steer Services, LLC 

• Crossing Complete  $394,578 

• Alternate 1:  Raise Road  $  12,578 

• Alternate 2:  Guard Rail  $  13,578 

Total   $420,734 

    

2.  St. Laurent & Son, Inc 

• Crossing Complete  $698,897 

• Alternate 1:  Raise Road  $  19,250 

• Alternate 2:  Guard Rail  $    4,850 

Total   $722,997 

 

3.  A.H. Grover      Box Culvert Aluminum Structural Arch 

• Crossing Complete  $375,298 $303,000 $267,000 

• Alternate 1:   $    7,000 

• Alternate 2:   $    5,575 

Total   $387,873 

 

4.  J. Pratt Construction, Inc. 

• Crossing Complete  $409,898 

• Alternate 1:   $    2,500 

• Alternate 2   $    4,400 

Total   $416,798 

 

5. Storey Brothers, Inc.  

• Crossing Complete  $471,945 

• Alternate 1:   $    9,730 

• Alternate 2:   $    5,340 

Total   $487,015 



Town of North Yarmouth January 25, 2023 

 

 

 
 
#53501 
January 25, 2023 
 
Mr. Clark Baston 
Public Works Director 
Town of North Yarmouth 
10 Village Square 
North Yarmouth, ME 04097 
 
RE:   Bid Award for Sweetser Road Culvert Replacement Project 
 
Dear Mr. Clark: 
 
Bids for the Sweetser Road culvert replacement project were opened earlier this week.  
The low bidder was A.H. Grover, Inc.  We have examined their bid documents and find 
everything to be in order.  Not only were they low bidder using our primary design of a 
precast box bridge, but they also gave an alternative (and lower) price using a 4-sided box 
culvert.  We specifically allowed this type of construction on our plans, so we support 
using this product. 
 
We do not have any first-hand experience with A.H. Grover, Inc. but we understand that 
they have done several similar projects, and they have a good reputation in the area. 
Based on this, we recommend awarding the contract to them. 
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.  

Sincerely, 
Dirigo Engineering 
 
 
 
 
 
Randy J. Butler, P.E. 
Sr. Project Engineer 

 

  

 































































Base Bid Option 1 -4 Sided Box Option 2 - Arch Plate

Item Description Bid Price   Bid Price   Bid Price   

1 Crossing Complete $375,298.00 $303,000.00 $267,000.00

2 Add Alternat 1: Raise Road $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00

3 Add Alternate 2: Guard Rail $5,575.00 $5,575.00 $5,575.00

Total of All Lump Sum Bid Items $387,873.00 $315,575.00 $279,575.00

Sweetser Road Stream Crossing Project

For the Town of North Yarmouth, Maine

A.H. Grover Options

Page 1 of 1

Dirigo Engineering

2 Dirigo Drive

Fairfield, ME  04937

207-453-2401









































































TOWN OF NORTH YARMOUTH 

PLANNING BOARD  
SITE PLAN REVIEW AND CONDITIONAL USE APPLICATION 

10 VILLAGE SQUARE ROAD, NORTH YARMOUTH, MAINE 04097  PHONE: (207) 829-3705  *  FAX: (207) 829-3743 
REV 12/19  Page | 1 

 

(See Section 4 pages 23 through 36 of the North Yarmouth Land Use Ordinance) 

 
NAME OF APPLICANT:   PHONE #:  

EMAIL:  ALT. PHONE#:  

FULL ADDRESS:  

PROPERTY ADDRESS:   

MAP:  LOT:   

    
AGENT/REPRESENTATIVE (if other):  PHONE #:  

EMAIL:  

FULL ADDRESS:  

 
1. Names and Addresses of ALL property owners within 500’ of any and all property boundaries (use 

a separate sheet). Please contact the code office for an updated list) 
 

2. Plan preparer information if other than property owner:   
Name:  ____________________________________________________________________ 

Address:  __________________________________________________________________ 

Phone Number: ________________________   Professional Lic. #_____________________ 

Email:  _______________________________________ 

 
3. Zoning Classification of the Property 

 

_____Village Center    _____Village Residential    _____Farm and Forest   
_____Shoreland Residential    _____Resource Protection    _____Royal River Overlay 
_____Groundwater Protection Overlay 

 
4. Provide a General Description of the proposed use or activity, including but not limited to the type 

of use, square footage involved, hours of operation, types and amount of traffic to be generated 
(use separate sheet). 

 
5. Historic Structures: Are there any historic structures or areas of historical importance on the 

property?    _____YES  _____NO 
 

6. Complete List of all chemicals, pesticides, fuels, nutrients and other potentially toxic or hazardous 
materials to be used or stored on the premises, and the quantities of these materials (use a 
separate sheet). 

 
7. List of Equipment to be used, parked or stored (use a separate sheet). 

 
8. To the best of my knowledge, all the above-stated information, and all prepared submissions in 

this application are correct. 
 

________________________________________________  __________________ 
Signature of Applicant/Owner       Date 







December 28, 2022  ::

<ProjectTitle>  ::

Project Location  ::



N
or

th
 Y

ar
m

ou
th

 C
om

m
un

it
y 

C
en

te
r 

S
of

tb
al

l F
ie

ld
 c

ur
re

nt
 

Ti
m

be
rh

ou
se

 :
: 

32
 Q

ua
rr

y 
R
id

ge
 N

or
th

 Y
ar

m
ou

th
 M

ai
ne

2

6'
-6

"

70'-0"

Storage shed

Existing aluminium gaurdrail



December 28, 2022  ::

<ProjectTitle>  ::

Project Location  ::



N
or

th
 Y

ar
m

ou
th

 C
om

m
un

it
y 

C
en

te
r 

Fi
el

d 
pr

op
os

ed
 c

ha
ng

es
Ti

m
be

rh
ou

se
 :

: 
 3

2 
Q

ua
rr

y 
R
id

ge
 N

or
th

 Y
ar

m
ou

th
 M

ai
ne

1

10
'-0

"

12'-0"

5'
-6

"

8'
-9

 3
/3

2"

12'-5 1/2"

82'-0"

Existing shed
New location

New Snack Shack
Announcers booth

New location
Wood parking
Barrier





Cumberland / North Yarmouth Little League proposal to make Improvements to the
softball field located at the North Yarmouth Community Center.

The Cumberland/North Yarmouth little league seeks approval from the Select Board of North
Yarmouth, to apply for a building permit for the following improvements to the Softball field.

● The relocation of the existing storage shed as noted on sketch plan
● Underground utilities to include power and water to be run from Parsonage Rd. to the

location of the proposed new building.
● Removal and relocation of existing parking barriers as noted on the sketch plan. New

barrier will be constructed of timber and will not pose any hazards to the community.
● Construction of new Snack shack/Announcers booth as noted on sketch plan
● Underground power feed from Snack Shack to new scoreboard, exact location TBD

All expenses for the work outlined will be the sole responsibility of Cumberland North Yarmouth
Little League, its donors, and those willing to help this volunteer based non-profit organization
create a better recreation product for its community.

Additionally, Cumberland/North Yarmouth Little League will hold the Central Maine Power
account and be the responsible party for all debts to CMP.  C.N.Y.L.L. will also be the account
holder for any municipal water service.
I have corresponded with Clark Baston, the improvements to the Softball field CNYLL would like
to accomplish and he has indicated no problems at all.  It has also been brought to my attention
that a municipal permit will be required to cross Parsonage Rd. with water service, as it is
located on the opposite side of the road from the parking lot entrance.

Lead C.N.Y.L.L. board members for this project

Chris Byrne - 653-9521
Josh Wetmore - 504-1739
Molly Costable - 409-6477


	X. E Cumberland North Yarmouth Little League.pdf
	NY site plan app for CNYLL
	NYCC Field snack shack field side
	NYCC snack shackparking side
	NYCC softball field current layout
	NYCC Softball field proposed changes
	Screen Shot 2022-12-28 at 7.27.51 AM


	PHONE: 207.504.1739
	EMAIL: jtw.timberframer@gmail.com
	ALT PHONE: 207.653.9521
	NAME OF APPLICANT 1: Cumberland North Yarmouth Little League
	NAME OF APPLICANT 2: Softball field 10 Village Square Rd.
	PROPERTY ADDRESS: Parking lot access from Parsonage Rd
	MAP: 07
	LOT: 85
	AGENTREPRESENTATIVE if other: Josh Wetmore/Chris Byrne
	PHONE_2: 207.504.1739
	EMAIL_2: jtw.timberframer@gmail.com
	FULL ADDRESS: 
	Name: Josh Wetmore
	Address: 32 Quarry Ridge North Yarmouth ME 04097
	Phone Number: 207.504.1739
	Professional Lic: NA
	Email: jtw.timberframer@gmail.com
	undefined: 
	Village Residential: 
	undefined_2: 
	Shoreland Residential: 
	Resource Protection: 
	Groundwater Protection Overlay: 
	property: 
	YES: x
	Date: 
	Text1: x


